
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING/ 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

Monday, May 10, 2021 

Regular Meeting ‐ 4:00 P.M. 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department 
of the State of California, the Alameda County March 31, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, 
and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday, May 10, 2021, Regular 
Board Meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be 
teleconferencing into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining 
transparency and public access, members of the public can observe the meeting by 
following the steps listed below to listen to the Board Meeting, and may provide public 
comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at 
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 before          
3:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting.  Comments will then be read into the record, with a 
maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Board President’s 
discretion.   All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to 
approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. If a comment is received after the agenda item is heard 
but before the close of the meeting, the comment will still be included as a part of the record of 
the meeting but will not be read into the record. 

Any member of the public who needs accommodations should email or call the Board Clerk who 
will use their best efforts to provide reasonable accommodations to provide as much accessibility 
as possible while also maintaining public safety in accordance with the Union Sanitary District 
procedure for resolving reasonable accommodation requests.  

To listen to this Regular Board Meeting: 

Call:  1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247 

Meeting ID:  838 0651 1716 # 

Participant ID:  # 

Click the Zoom link below to watch and listen: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806511716 

1 of 134



1. Call to Order.

2. Salute to the Flag. (This item has been suspended due to the COVID‐19 pandemic.)
 

3. Roll Call.

Motion  4. Approve Minutes of the Union Sanitary District Board Meeting of April 26, 2021.

5. Written Communications.

6. Public Comment.
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item
is considered.  Speaker cards will be available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed
prior to the start of the meeting.

 

Motion  7. Consider Adoption of Proposed New Policy – Pension and Other Post‐Employment
Benefits (OPEB) Funding Policy (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).

Motion  8. Consider a Resolution to Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Enhanced
Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program and Approve the ETSU Phase 1
Program (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Motion  9. Award the Construction Contract of the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project to
Garney Pacific,  Inc. (to be reviewed by the Engineering and  Information Technology
Committee).

Motion  10. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 1 with Western
Water Constructors, Inc. for the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project (to be reviewed by the
Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Motion  11. Authorize  the General Manager  to Execute Task Order No. 2 with V&A Consulting
Engineers,  Inc.  for  the  Cathodic  Protection  System  Improvements  Project  (to  be
reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Direction  12. Board Direction Regarding New Campus Boardroom Following Enhanced Treatment
and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Update Board Workshop.

Information  13. Certificates of Merit  to Union Sanitary District’s Class  I Permitted  Industries  (to be
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Information  14. COVID‐19 Update.

Information  15. Check Register.
 

Information  16. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):
a. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Thursday, May 6, 2021, at 1:00 p.m.

 Director Toy and Director Fernandez

b. Budget & Finance Committee – Friday, May 7, 2021, at 10:00 a.m.

 Director Kite and Director Toy

2 of 134



c. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Friday, May 7, 2021, at 11:00 a.m.

 Director Lathi and Director Handley

d. Legislative Committee – will not meet.

e. Personnel Committee – will not meet.

Information   17. General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

18. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are

welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.

19. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn  to  the Board Budget Workshop  to be held
virtually on Tuesday, May 11, 2021, at 4:00 p.m.

20. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting to be
held virtually on Monday, May 24, 2021, at 4:00 p.m.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

3 of 134



LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  
Committee Members:  Director Toy and Director Fernandez 

AGENDA 
Thursday, May 6, 2021 

1:00 P.M. 

Alvarado Conference Room 
5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order       

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting.

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 10, 2021:
• Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries

5. Adjournment 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  
No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

4 of 134

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, May 7, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

 

3. Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 10, 2021: 

• Consider Adoption of Proposed New Policy – Pension and Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) Funding Policy  

 

 

5. Adjournment 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

5 of 134

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov


 

 

 
 
 
 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Lathi and Director Handley 
 

AGENDA 
Friday, May 7, 2021 

11:00 A.M. 
 

Alvarado Conference Room 
5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, 
the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, 

this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via 
conference call.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 

meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by sending 
comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 up 

to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

 

3. Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 10, 2021: 
• Consider a Resolution to Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Enhanced 

Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program and Approve the ETSU Phase 1 
Program  

• Award the Construction Contract of the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project to 
Garney Pacific, Inc  

• Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 1 with Western 
Water Constructors, Inc. for the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

• Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with V&A Consulting 
Engineers, Inc. for the Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 

 
 

5. Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  
No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

6 of 134

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov


 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT/UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

April 26, 2021 
 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive 
Department of the State of California, the Alameda County March 16, 2020 Shelter in 

Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday,          
April 26, 2021, Regular Board Meeting was not physically open to the public and all 

Board Members teleconferenced into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still 
maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public were able to listen to 

the Board Meeting, and provide public comment by sending comments to the  
Board Clerk. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice President Kite called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  The regular meeting time 
was modified due to the COVID-19 emergency. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Pat Kite, Vice President 

Anjali Lathi, Secretary  
Manny Fernandez, Director 

 
ABSENT: Tom Handley, President (arrived at 4:09 p.m.) 
  Jennifer Toy, Director (arrived at 4:05 p.m.) 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Mark Carlson, Business Services Manager/CFO 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication Construction and Maintenance Manager 
Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager 
Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
VISITORS: Lora Carpenter, Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates 
  Jim Fabian, Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates 
 
 

7 of 134



 

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING OF 

APRIL 12, 2021 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve the 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of April 12, 2021.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Handley, Toy 
 
MARCH 2021 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance and Legal/Community Affairs 
Committees.  General Manager Eldredge presented the odor and work group reports and 
Business Services Manager/CFO Carlson presented the financial reports. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
REVIEW PROPOSED EDITS TO POLICY NO. 3070, BOARDMEMBER OFFICERS 
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE POLICY 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  District Counsel 
Murphy stated Policy No. 3070 was last approved by the Board in December of 2019.  
The Policy states the Board shall annually elect by majority vote the President, Vice-
President, and Secretary at the first regular meeting following certification in election 
years; or one year after the prior election in non-election years.  Due to Census data 
delays brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic, the 2022 Primary Election has been 
moved from March to June 7, 2022.  At the Board meeting held April 12, 2021, the Board 
directed staff to modify Policy No. 3070 to provide more flexibility in the dates of Board 
officer elections.  Staff recommended the Board approve the updated version of Policy 
No. 3070, Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership and Consider Approval of 
the Policy.   
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by President Handley, to Approve the 
Updated Version of Policy No. 3070, Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership.  
Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 

8 of 134



 

ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A BOARD RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE STAFF, LEGAL 
COUNSEL, AND MUNICIPAL ADVISOR TO PREPARE DOCUMENTS FOR THE 
ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services 
Manager/CFO Carlson stated staff have been working on funding options for upcoming 
capital projects with assistance from our financial advisors, Fielman Rolapp.  The 
recommendation is to take advantage of historically low bond rates with a bond issuance 
ranging from $80 million to a not to exceed amount of $110 million.  The funds would 
primarily be used for the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Phase 1A and would 
also be used to finance additional projects to be proposed in the upcoming CIP budget.  
Substantially final versions of the financing documents will be brought back to the Board 
for consideration and approval at a future Board meeting.  Staff recommended the Board 
consider approval of a resolution to authorize staff, legal counsel, and municipal advisor 
to prepare documents for the issuance of revenue bonds to finance an estimated amount 
of capital projects ranging from $80 million to a not to exceed amount of $110 million. 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2921 Authorizing Union Sanitary District to Issue Revenue Bonds with Stradling 
Yocca Carlson & Rauth as Bond Counsel, Quint & Thimmig as Disclosure Counsel, 
Fieldman Rolapp & Associates as Municipal Advisor, and RBC as Underwriter for the 
Transaction.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION RESCINDING AND REPLACING 
RESOLUTION NO. 2615, GRANTING INDIVIDUAL DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO 
CERTAIN STAFF TO REJECT OR APPROVE PROJECT DESIGN, PLANS, AND 
SPECIFICATIONS PRIOR TO BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION, AND TO APPROVE 
CHANGES TO PLANS AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS TO BE MADE DURING 
CONSTRUCTION TO ADD THE ENHANCED TREATMENT AND SITE UPGRADE 
PROGRAM (ETSU) MANAGER AND ASSISTANT MANAGER TO THE LIST OF 
AUTHORIZED STAFF MEMBERS 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager Pipkin stated the District 
conformed its design and approval procedures with the requirements of California 
Government Code Section 830.6 by adopting Resolution No. 2615.  The resolution 
granted individual discretionary authority to specific staff members to approve plans and 
take other actions to preserve design immunity under Section 830.6.  Since the adoption 

9 of 134



 

of the Resolution, the Board approved the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade 
Program (ETSU) and created the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program 
Manager and Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Assistant Program Manager 
positions.  Staff recommended the Board adopt an updated resolution to add the two new 
positions to the list of staff members granted discretionary authority to approve plans and 
specifications and to take other actions as noted in Resolution No. 2615.  Proposed 
revisions to the resolution will also update the list of authorized staff members to reflect 
current positions and titles. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Adopt Resolution No. 2922 
Rescinding and Replacing Resolution No. 2615, Granting Individual Discretionary 
Authority to Certain Staff to Reject or Approve Project Design Plans and Specifications 
Prior to Bidding and Construction, and to Approve Changes to Plans and/or Specifications 
to be made During Construction to Add the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade 
(ETSU) Program Manager and Assistant Manager to the List of Authorized Staff 
Members.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE CATHODIC PROTECTION 
SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT TO CORRPRO COMPANIES, INC. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Project was advertised for bids on 
March 2, 2021, and the three bids received were opened on March 30, 2021.  Staff 
reviewed the apparent low bid submitted by Corrpro and found two minor irregularities.  
The first was that JDH Corrosion was listed as a subcontractor; however, JDH is an 
engineering consultant firm and does not have a California contractor license.  Corrpro 
clarified JDH will perform testing and commissioning of the new cathodic protection 
system and will not perform construction work.  The second irregularity was that Corrpro 
failed to check the box confirming the contract price would be under $1,000,000, which 
would confirm the Iran Contract Act certification requirements would not apply.  District 
legal counsel determined these irregularities could be waived by the District.  Corrpro will 
have 210 calendar days to complete the Project from Notice to Proceed, with an estimated 
substantial completion date in December of 2021.  Staff recommended the Board award 
the construction contract for the Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project to 
Corrpro Companies, Inc. in the amount of $483,800. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Award the 
Construction Contract for the Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project to 
Corrpro Companies, Inc. in the Amount of $483,800.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 

10 of 134



 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OF THE FY21 GRAVITY SEWER 
REHABILITATION/REPLACEMENT PROJECT (PHASE VII) TO CASEY 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Project was advertised for bids on 
February 23, 2021, and the seven bids received were opened on April 1, 2021.  Staff 
reviewed the apparent low bid submitted by Casey and found one minor irregularity.  
Casey provided an incorrect Experience Modification Rate (EMR) for one of the three 
years of their three-year average Workers’ Compensation EMR.  The corrected three-
year average was still below the maximum set in the Safety Qualification Criteria section 
of the Bid Documents.  District legal counsel determined the minor irregularity could be 
waived by the District.  Bid Alternate A is for providing “Acts of God” Insurance that would 
indemnify against the loss of or damage to the Pine Street easement retaining wall during 
construction under specified conditions.  The contractor will have 140 calendar days to 
complete project construction, with an estimated substantial completion date in 
September 2021.  Staff recommended the Board waive a minor irregularity in the 
apparent low bid and award the construction contract, including Bid Alternate A, for the 
FY21 Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation/Replacement Project – Phase VII to Casey 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $595,051. 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Waive a Minor 
Irregularity in the Apparent Low Bid and Award the Construction Contract, Including Bid 
Alternate A, for the Fiscal Year 2021 Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation/Replacement Project 
– Phase VII to Casey Construction, Inc. in the Amount of $595,051.  Motion carried with 
the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
FALL 2021 NEWSLETTER 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Communications 
and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator Powell stated the Board entered a multi-
year contract for printing services in 2017.  The contract was for three years, with the 
option to renew for two additional years, and was extended for one year for the Fall 2020 
newsletter.  The contract is eligible for one final extension for the Fall 2021 newsletter. 
Staff presented a list of potential content topics for the Board’s consideration. Staff 
recommended the Board review and provide feedback as necessary on potential topics 

11 of 134



 

for the District’s Fall 2021 newsletter and consider extending the contract for printing 
services for one final year. 
 
The Board gave input on proposed topics and directed staff to extend the printing services 
contract for its final year. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
District Rebranding Initiative Update 
Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk McEvoy stated staff have been 
compiling a list of agencies to contact as part of the name change process.  Staff have 
begun contacting these agencies to create a timeline of events and ensure understanding 
of necessary paperwork.  The Board will need to adopt the new name by resolution.  The 
resolution will be filed with the County Recorder’s office as required by the Health and 
Safety Code.  The recorded resolution will then be forwarded to the Secretary of State 
and other required agencies.  Staff will simultaneously work with Pier 2 to develop a style 
guide, training program, and implementation plan for the Board’s future consideration.  
The Board discussed the potential timeline for adoption of the name change resolution 
and expressed a preference for proceeding in the Summer of 2022.   
 
Cal-Card 3rd Quarter Activity Report, Fiscal Year 2021 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
provided an overview of the Report included in the Board meeting packet and responded 
to Boardmember questions. 
 
Boardmember Expenses, 3rd Quarter of Fiscal Year 2021 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
provided an overview of the Board expenses included in the Board meeting packet and 
responded to Boardmember questions. 
 
Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority Meeting of March 18, 2021 
Director Toy provided an overview of the March EBDA Commission meeting minutes that 
were included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
COVID-19 Update 
General Manager Eldredge provided an update regarding COVID-19 impacts on District 
operations and coordination efforts.  
 
Check Register 
There were no questions regarding the check register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Budget & Finance, Engineering and Information Technology, and Legal/Community 
Affairs Committees met.   
 

12 of 134



 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
General Manager Eldredge stated the following: 
 

 The Board Budget Workshop will be held virtually at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday,            
May 11, 2021. 

 There was a sewer spill in Fremont recently and District staff were able to recover 
all of it.  Prior to this event the District’s last spill was in July of 2020. 

 Staff will present an item at the May 10, 2021, Board meeting seeking Board 
feedback on the Boardroom in the Campus building design. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
There was no other business 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting to be held 
virtually at 4:00 p.m. on Monday, May 10, 2021. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
PRESIDENT    
 

Adopted this 10th day of May 2021 

13 of 134



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
TITLE: Adoption of Proposed New Policy – Pension and OPEB Funding Policy 2095 

(This is a Motion Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Mark Carlson, CFO and Business Services Work Group Manager 
  
 
Recommendation 
Staff is recommending the adoption of a new policy, Pension and OPEB Funding Policy 2095. 
 
Discussion 
It is the policy of Union Sanitary District to manage the resources and obligations of the District 
to achieve the most fiscally prudent and responsible results for the ratepayers.  To that end, the 
attached proposed new policy, provides direction to District staff in the managing of its Pension 
and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) liabilities.   
 
The policy contains 5 main elements: 

1. For pensions, to establish a 115 trust for the accumulation of contributed funds and the 
related investment earnings. With the direction of the Board, this will be done via an 
RFP in the near future. For OPEB, as there is already a 115 Trust in place, the District will 
continue to utilize the existing plan 

2. Annually, following a presentation of the status of the pension and OPEB plans, the 
Board will determine an amount, if any, that will be contributed to the Trusts.  This 
amount will then be included in the following years budget.  The Board will contain full 
control over the amounts contributed. 

3. The long term goal of the plan is to raise the funding percentage of both plans to 
between 90% and 100% of the Actuarial Accrued Liability and then maintain those 
percentages moving forward. 

4. To utilize the accumulated funds for allowable pension and OPEB expenses in the future. 

14 of 134



5. The policy will be reviewed and updated every three years by the Board. 
 
Background 
The board held a workshop on 02/24/21 that, in part, discussed various pension and OPEB 
funding models designed to achieve a funding percentage of between 90% and 100% of the 
plan’s liabilities.  The Board provided direction to staff to develop a policy that works toward 
achieving the funding goal while giving the Board flexibility on the amount that is contributed 
annually.  
 
Previous Board Action 
None 
 
Attachments 
Proposed New Policy – Pension and OPEB Funding Policy 2095  

15 of 134



Union Sanitary District 

Policy and Procedure Manual 

Effective Date: Pension and OPEB Funding Policy Policy Number 
2095 

May 2021  Page 1 of 3 

 
Policy 

It is the policy of Union Sanitary District to manage the fiscal resources and obligations of the 
District to achieve the most fiscally prudent and responsible results for the ratepayers. 

Purpose 

This policy provides direction to the District regarding a desired funding target as it relates to the 
Districts Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) plans, the method by which to 
fund the shortfall and the allowable expenses that can be paid/reimbursed from a 115 Trust 
(Trust). 
 
Discussion 

The overarching goal of a Pension/OPEB Funding Policy is to ensure that the District is prudently 
funding its long term financial obligations. This must, however, be balanced against immediate 
impacts to service delivery  as a result of funding these contributions. 

One method of achieving the desired funding percentage is through the use of an IRS qualified 
115 Trust.  The Trust is an investment earnings depository, managed by a third party, specifically 
designed to accumulate funds to be utilized for future Pension or OPEB benefit payments. A 
separate trust account is required for both Pensions and OPEB.  Once deposited , or earned in 
the case of investments, the funds can only be utilized for the payment of related plan benefits 
as defined by IRS regulations. 

Definitions 

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) 

The present value of all benefits earned by members of a pension 
or OPEB plan, as of the date of the actuarial valuation 

Actuarial Value of Assets 
(AVA) 

The value of pension or OPEB plan investments and other property 
used by the actuary for the purpose of an actuarial valuation 
(sometimes referred to as valuation assets). 

Funded Ratio The ratio of the actuarial value of assets (AVA) to the actuarial 
accrued liability (AAL) 

Funded Status A measure of how well funded a plan is with respect to assets 
versus liabilities.  The status is shown as a percent reflecting plan 
assets divided by plan liabilities. 

Funding Goal The percentage as determined by the Funding Ratio calculation to 
be no less than 90% and no more than 100%. 

16 of 134



Union Sanitary District 

Policy and Procedure Manual 

Effective Date: Pension and OPEB Funding Policy Policy Number 
2095 

May 2021  Page 2 of 3 

 
Unfunded Accrued 
Liability (UAL) 

The UAL occurs when the plans assets (AVA) are less that its 
liabilities (AAL).  It is calculated by subtracting the AVA from the 
AAL. 

 

Procedures 

The goal of the Pension and OPEB Funding Policy is to set aside funds in a recognized Pension 
Trust and an OPEB Trust such that the plans Funded Status will eventually be reached and then 
maintained between 90% and  100%.  In order to achieve this goal, the Board will annually make 
a determination as to the amount of funds to be set aside in the respective Trusts to achieve this 
goal. However, the Board has the authority to limit or suspend annual contributions to the Trust 
should financial reasons dictate even if this suspension would cause the District not to reach or 
maintain its funding goals. 

This determination will be made as part of the annual budgeting process.  Staff will present to 
the Board a comprehensive Pension and OPEB update, sufficient to enable the Board to make a 
determination as to the next years Trust funding amount , if any.  At a minimum, information 
presented to the Board will include a summary of the Pension and OPEB valuation reports, status 
of the related Trust, and projections on when the Trust will meet the Funding Goal.  

Payments toward the trust, will be made as soon in the fiscal year as possible in order to earn the 
maximum investment possible on the plan assets. 

The assets of the Trust (contributions and investment earnings) can be used at the determination 
of the District to fund any and all Pension and OPEB Obligations which include, but may not be 
limited to Normal Costs, Unfunded Accrued Liabilities, Replacement Benefit Plan Payments or 
any other Pension and OPEB benefit that may arise in the future to the extent allowable by Trust 
guidelines. 

The goal of this policy is to see the Funded Status of between 90% and 100% reached and 
maintained. This funding percentage is only a goal and may be affected by a multitude of factors 
both inside and outside the Districts control.   

 

Business Services Responsibility 

Business Services is responsible for: 

• Administration of the Pension and OPEB Trusts, 

17 of 134



Union Sanitary District 

Policy and Procedure Manual 

Effective Date: Pension and OPEB Funding Policy Policy Number 
2095 

May 2021  Page 3 of 3 

 
• Annual reporting of Pension and OPEB Trust status to the Board, 
• Determining the expected impacts of future contribution to the funding status of the 

Pension and OPEB Trusts. 
 

Management Responsibility 

Management is responsible for ensuring the District adheres to the Pension Funding Policy. 

 

Approved by:    Board of Directors 
Author/owner:  Business Services Manager 
Reviewers:    Executive Team 
Notify Person:  Business Services Manager 
Revision frequency:   Every 3 years  
Next Policy Review:  May 2024 
 

18 of 134



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

TITLE: 

SUBMITTED: 

MAY 10, 2021
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA ITEM # 8

Consider a Resolution to Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 
Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program and Approve 
the ETSU Phase 1 Program  

Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager  
Curtis Bosick, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Assistant PM 
ETSU Steering Committee (Armando Lopez, Sami Ghossain, Robert Simonich) 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program (Project) and approving the 
Project for the purpose of filing the Notice of Determination. 

Discussion 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires that the District complete an 
environmental review process for the ETSU Phase 1 Program. Hazen and Sawyer (Hazen), the 
designer for the ETSU Phase 1 Program, and their subconsultant Scheidegger and Associates 
conducted the environmental review and prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) for the ETSU Phase 1 Program.  

Pursuant to CEQA, the consultant analyzed the ETSU Phase 1 Program’s (“Project”) potential 
impact with respect to various environmental factors (e.g., air quality, biological resources, 
cultural resources, etc.). The Initial Study concluded that while several potential significant 
environmental impacts could result from the Project, mitigation measures will effectively address 
these impacts. Therefore, staff prepared a Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) to satisfy 

19 of 134



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
the requirements of CEQA. The IS/MND includes mitigation measures to be included in the 
Program to mitigate any identified impacts to the environment. 
 
Consultant and staff have prepared this IS/MND for the entire ETSU Phase 1 Program and the 
specific Phase 1A– Aeration Basin (AB) Improvements Project in order to provide the most wide-
ranging assessment of potential impacts.  As more design details are finalized for Phase 1B, 1C 
and the Campus project, staff will analyze whether additional environmental review is required 
for those projects and then bring back any further environmental documents for consideration 
by the Board.  
 
Staff circulated the IS/MND to local and state agencies for review on March 8, 2021 for a review 
period from March 9, 2021 through April 8, 2021 and the Board held a public hearing to accept 
public comments on March 22, 2021. The attached “Notice of Document Availability and Intent 
to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration” was published in the Tri-City Voice on March 9, 2021 
and in The Argus on March 12, 2021.  
 
During the review period, staff received comments from three agencies, which are summarized 
in Table 1.  There were no comments submitted by members of the public.  Please refer to the 
attached Response Document for copies of the comment letters, the responses to the comments, 
and clarifying edits made to the IS/MND in response to the agency comments received.  The edits 
do not require recirculation of the MND under CEQA Guidelines 15073.5, as they do not 
constitute substantial revisions, but merely clarify, amplify or make insignificant modifications to 
the terms of the previously circulated MND. 
 
If the Board proceeds with the adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project, 
staff will file the attached Notice of Determination (NOD) with the Governor’s Office of Planning 
and Research and the Alameda County Clerk. The filing of the NOD will start a 30-day statute of 
limitations period for challenging approval of the IS/MND.   
 
Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program (Project) and approving the 
Project for the purpose of filing the Notice of Determination. 
 
 
Background 
 
The ETSU Program is the culmination of the District’s planning efforts and is based on the 
outcomes and findings of the Plant Solids System/Capacity Assessment – Phases 1 and 2, 
Administration/Control/FMC Buildings Evaluation, the Effluent Management Study and the 
Secondary Treatment Process Improvements evaluation.  The Program includes projects 
recommended for implementation that will be phased to address both immediate drivers (poor 

20 of 134



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
sludge settleability, treatment capacity, effluent disposal and aging infrastructure), while 
preparing for future requirements such as nutrient regulations for discharge in the Bay that are 
currently being considered by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.   
 
The Phase 1 and 2 projects included in this program were presented to the Board during the 
workshop held on May 8, 2019 and are summarized in the Final Report which was approved by 
the Board on August 26, 2019.  A third phase of projects was briefly outlined that covered the 
timeframe from 2040 to 2058 and included potentially stricter nutrient limits in the more distant 
future.  The projects identified in the ETSU Program and modified by the 30% design report to be 
implemented in the near-term (the next seven to ten years) are included in Phase 1 and are 
summarized in the table below. 
 

Phase 1A Aeration Basin 
Modifications 

Retrofitting existing Aeration Basins 1 through 7 and 
construction of an 8th aeration basin with the flexibility 
to operate initially with an anaerobic selector during the 
implementation phase and transitioning to a biological 
nutrient removal (BNR) process following completion. 

Phase 1A 
Campus Building  
(Admin, FMC, Ops) 

Construction of a new combined Campus Building, 
including associated site and utility improvements.  

Phase 1B Secondary Clarifiers 
Construction of four new 160-foot diameter secondary 
clarifiers, mixed liquor control box, and centralized RAS 
pump station.  

Phase 1B Effluent Facilities 
Construction of new chlorination/dechlorination contact 
basins, effluent pump stations, and relocation of 
existing effluent force main. 

Phase 1C Plant Equalization 
Storage 

Retrofitting existing Secondary Clarifiers 1 through 4 to 
operate as primary effluent equalization basins. 

 
The full version of the ETSU Program report, including appendices, can be found at the following 
link: https://unionsanitary.ca.gov/ETSU.   
 
 
PRE/RP/CB 
 
Attachments: Figure 1 – Site Plan 
 Table 1 – Comments and Responses 
 Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration link 
 Response Document – Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 

21 of 134

https://unionsanitary.ca.gov/ETSU
https://unionsanitary.ca.gov/about-us/usd-construction-projects/project-documents


Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

 Notice of Document Availability and Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration 

 Notice of Determination 
 Resolution 

22 of 134



Figure 1: ETSU Program – Phase 1 Project Locations

Phase 1A – Aeration 

Basin Modifications

Phase 1B – New 

Secondary Clarifiers

Phase 1B – New 

Effluent Facilities

Phase 1C – New Primary 

Effluent Equalization
Phase 1A – New 

Campus Building

23 of 134



1 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

State Water 
Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB) 

1-1.  Instead of relying on the Biological Resource 
Assessment (BRA) for the Standby Power Project with 
supporting discussion in the IS/MND, the SWRCB requests a 
BRA for on-site biological impacts be prepared specific to 
the ETSU Phase 1 Program and be submitted with the 
District's SRF-funding application. 
 

As requested, a BRA for On-Site Biological Impacts with up to 
date CNDDB and CNPS lists will be prepared and forwarded to 
the SWRCB by USD as part of the CWSRF loan application. 
 

1-2.  Consultation with the local Floodplain Administrator 
will need to be done to comply with the Floodplain 
Management cross cutter.  The Floodplain Administrator 
must confirm that project design is in compliance with all 
FEMA technical requirements and local ordinances for 
construction within the 100-year floodplain.  Provide the 
SWRCB with the name of the Floodplain Administrator and 
documentation of your correspondence with them. 
   

Consultation with the local Floodplain Administrator has begun.  
As you requested, USD will provide the SWRCB with the 
Floodplain Administrator's name and documentation of the 
consultation process. 

1-3.  Following completion of the CEQA process, upload the 
required documents to FAAST in support of the District's 
SRF funding application. 
                                                                          

All requested documents will be forwarded to the SWRCB by 
USD when the CWSRF loan application is submitted. 

Alameda County 
Water District 
(ACWD)  

2-1.  Dewatering:  Since groundwater is very shallow within 
the project area, ACWD notes it is critical that the amount 
of water that may be extracted by either temporary or 
permanent dewatering be evaluated and documented.  If 
appropriate, alternative designs should be considered that 
would minimize the amount of dewatering required during 
and subsequent to construction.  Groundwater losses due 
to dewatering must be measured and may be subject to a 
replenishment assessment fee.  Mitigation measures 
should be identified to replace all significant losses of 
ACWD's water supplies. 

The IS/MND discusses that groundwater losses due to 
dewatering will be measured, reported to ACWD, and may be 
subject to a replenishment assessment fee.  For the Phase 1A-
Aeration Basin (AB) Improvements Project, ongoing design has 
determined that for the new AB 8 groundwater levels must be 
lowered to 18 feet below ground surface due to constructability 
reasons.  However, a watertight interlocking sheet pile system 
will be installed with grouting to mitigate the need for 
continuous dewatering and extraction of underlying shallow 
groundwater.  For the ongoing Digester 7 Project, the site was 
dewatered and an interlocking sheet pile system was installed 
which resulted in only minor seepage occurring during the 

24 of 134



2 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

course of construction. The contractor will be required to submit 
their plan to ACWD for ACWD’s approval and to obtain a 
dewatering permit.  It is the intention to utilize the same 
approach for the ETSU Phase 1B-Secondary Clarifiers and 
Effluent Facilities Project which will require excavation.  See 
Section 3 of this Response Document for the recommended 
revision to Chapter 3, Control Measure G1, page 74.  
 

2-2.  Hazards and Hazardous Materials.  ACWD requests 
that Section I of Chapter 3 of the Draft IS/MND (Hazards 
and Hazardous Materials) should acknowledge that as part 
of ACWD's Groundwater Protection Program, ACWD 
entered into Cooperative Agreements with both the 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board–San 
Francisco Bay Region (Regional Board) and the City of Union 
City, which allows ACWD to provide technical oversight for 
the investigation and remediation at Leaking Underground 
Fuel Tank (LUFT) sites and sites where the pollution is 
attributed to spills or leaks from structures other than 
underground fuel tanks now referred to as Site Cleanup 
Program sites or SCP (formerly known as Spills, Leaks, 
Investigation, and Cleanup sites or SLIC sites).                          
 

See Section 3 of this Response Document for the recommended 
revision to Chapter 3, Section I, page 84. 

 

2-3.  Pages 84 and 90-91 of the Draft IS/MND identifies the 
Alvarado WWTP as an existing LUFT cleanup site identified 
on the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) 
GeoTracker database (GeoTracker ID #T0600100063).  
However, there is also an open SCP site located within the 
Project area (GeoTracker ID #SL0600100493).  As needed, 
ACWD requests the corresponding sections of the Draft 
IS/MND, including Figure 3-7, be updated to reflect all 
known areas of contamination. 

Available information from Geotracker does indicate two 
program cleanup sites, one listed as a waste oil tank area 
(Geotracker ID#T0600100063) and one listed as Veasy Street 
expansion (ID#SL0600100493).  These sites are for the Alvarado 
WWTP and apparently can be differentiated by different 
contaminants of concern and different sources of 
contamination.  These sites are open and subject to verification 
monitoring which is done on an annual basis as discussed in the 
IS/MND.  Information on Figure 3-7 and supporting narrative is 

25 of 134



3 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

based on the annual reports and input from Brown and Caldwell 
who does the monitoring.  No updates to the IS/MND are 
needed. 
 

2-4.  ACWD notes there are portions of the proposed 
excavation and construction area that intersect areas of 
known groundwater and soil contamination, mainly in the 
northern and western portions of the proposed work areas.  
ACWD requests that the Draft IS/MND include a provision 
that project proponents coordinate with ACWD if there is a 
proposal to excavate soil in the impacted areas within the 
proposed development. 
 

Control Measure I8 requires the Contractor to prepare a Job 
Plan which will contain the proposed methods and procedures 
for managing contaminated soil or groundwater.  ACWD has 
been added to the reviewing parties.  See Section 3 of the 
Response Document for the revisions to Chapter 3, Section I, 
page 85, Control Measure I8(a). 

2-5.  Dewatering is proposed during Phases 1A and 1B of 
the Project.  ACWD requests the Draft IS/MND address how 
the Project proponents will manage contaminated 
groundwater during dewatering activities, including 
disposal and potential plume migration. 

Control Measures I7-I10 describe how the Contractor will 
manage contaminated soil and groundwater.   ACWD will be 
consulted in preparation of the Job Plan (Response 2-4).  
Depending on the quality of the groundwater that is extracted, 
disposal may be to the plant headworks or suitable off-site 
disposal facility.  As indicated in Response 2-1, measures will be 
taken to minimize the amount of dewatering needed to 
minimize any effects on local groundwater. 
 

2-6.  Pages 22 and 74 of the Draft IS/MND indicate the 
proposed use of backfill material, subject to review by a 
geotechnical engineer.  It is unclear from the Draft IS/MND 
what sampling and analytical specifications are required of 
the backfill material.  ACWD recommends that, at a 
minimum, all backfill material comply with 
recommendations set forth in the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control's (DTSC) Information Advisory, Clean 
Imported Fill Material (October 2001). 
 

Sampling and analytical specifications for backfill material will be 
provided as design of the Phase 1 projects progresses.  Control 
Measure G8 requires that all imported fills not contain 
environmental contaminants or debris, shall be non-corrosive, 
and comply with the recommendations in the Department of 
Toxic Substances Control Information Advisory Imported Fill 
Material (October 2001). 
 
 

26 of 134



4 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

 
 
 
2-7.  ACWD has two active monitoring wells located near 
the Project area:  4S/2W-09P010 located on the northwest 
corner, and 4S/2W-16C011 located on the western side of 
the property.  ACWD installed the monitoring wells as part 
of ACWD's groundwater management efforts.  
Groundwater sampling and monitoring of these wells are 
imperative to the continued management of the Niles Cone 
Groundwater Basin.  For this reason, ACWD appreciates 
USD's assistance in protecting the monitoring wells during 
construction activities related to the proposed Project.  
These wells must also be properly maintained during and 
following the Project such that the wells are accessible by a 
drill rig so that work can be performed on the wells as 
needed.  In addition, please note that any change in the 
surface construction features (including lowering or raising 
of the well boxes) requires prior approval from ACWD. 
 

Figure I-9 from the IS/MND has been revised to show the 
location of the second well (4S/2W-16C011).  This figure and 
edits to supporting text are included in Section 3 of the 
Response Document.  Both wells are removed from ETSU Phase 
1 construction activities and will continue to be afforded 
protection during construction and access by ACWD. 

2-8.  ACWD has identified a number of additional 
monitoring, dewatering, and geotechnical wells within the 
Project area.  In order to protect the groundwater basin, 
each well located within the Project area must be in 
compliance with ACWD Ordinance No. 2010-01.  If the well 
is to remain, a letter indicating its intent must be sent to 
ACWD and will require a permit for inactive classification if 
the well will not be used for a period of twelve (12) months.  
In addition, any abandoned wells located within the project 
area must be properly destroyed prior to construction 
activities.   
 

The Contractor(s) will comply with ACWD Ordinance No. 2010-
01 and requirements for commissioning and decommissioning 
water wells. 

27 of 134



5 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

 
 
2-9.  Page 93 of the Draft IS/MND states, "Pursuant to 
ACWD Ordinance No. 2020-01 discussed below, any 
penetration into the aquifer requires the review and 
approval of ACWD."  The ordinance number referenced 
requires correction and permits are required for any well, 
exploratory hole, or other excavation and are not solely 
restricted to whether an aquifer is penetrated.  Specific 
details regarding permitting requirements are provided in 
ACWD's Ordinance and corresponding Standards.  As a 
result, ACWD requests the above sentence to be corrected 
to the following:   
 
 "Pursuant to ACWD Ordinance No. 2010-01 discussed 

below, ACWD requires permits for wells, exploratory 
holes, and other excavations." 

 

The broader scope of Ordinance No. 2010-01 beyond aquifer 
penetration is mentioned elsewhere in the IS/MND.  For 
purposes of the discussion on page 93, reference to only 
Ordinance No. 2010-01 and aquifer penetration is appropriate.  
No correction to the text other than the ordinance number is 
necessary.  See Section 3 of the Response Document  
amendments on page 93. 

2-10.  ACWD appreciates the inclusion of permit 
requirements and coordination with ACWD regarding 
drilling permits for dewatering wells in the Draft IS/MND.  
Pursuant to ACWD Ordinance No. 2010-01, drilling permits 
are required prior to the start of any subsurface drilling 
activities for wells, exploratory holes, and other excavations 
which includes sheet piles if they intersect an aquifer or 
may impact the integrity of any aquitard located direction 
above an aquifer. 
 
Pages 74 an 97 of the Draft IS/MND indicate that any 
excavation dewatering of more than one foot below 
groundwater level will be contained within relatively 
impermeable (watertight) shoring.  As previously 

See Section 3 of the Response Document for edits to Control 
Measure G1. 

28 of 134



6 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

mentioned, ACWD requires permits for the installation of 
sheet piles to ensure they are constructed in a manner that 
will prevent the creation of a preferential pathway that 
could:  1) allow runoff to rapidly infiltrate the subsurface 
and bypass soils which have the capacity to remove 
pollutants, and/or 2) create an interconnection of aquifers 
or water bearing zones.  Therefore, ACWD requests the 
Draft IS/MND include the installation of sheet piles under 
the permit requirements and includes a provision that 
project proponents coordinate with ACWD regarding the 
design and construction of the shoring system prior to final 
design approval. 
 
2-11.  ACWD owns and maintains water system facilities 
within Veasy Street and Benson Road.  The facilities must 
be protected, or if they need to be relocated, ACWD's 
requirements must be met.  The Draft IS/MND should 
describe any potential main relocations and address any 
associated environmental impacts that may arise from their 
construction. 

Ongoing engineering design has identified the need to relocate 
PG&E and ACWD utilities in the Veasy Road and Benson Road 
extensions within the WWTP as part of the ETSU Phase 1B-
Campus Building Project.  Relative to ACWD, about 500 feet of 
the existing 12-inch ACP water main within the Benson Road 
extension will need to be relocated to the north.  Open cut 
excavation will be used to remove the affected water main and 
to install the replacement line and will not result in new impacts 
beyond those addressed in the IS/MND.  USD and Hazen and 
Sawyer, the design engineer, have consulted with ACWD to 
discuss this project feature and to discuss ACWD requirements 
as identified in Comment 2-11.  This activity, by itself, would 
actually qualify for various exemptions included in the CEQA 
Guidelines, including Section 15282(k) which is a statutory 
exemption for installation of new pipelines within a public ROW 
which are less than one mile in length, and a Class 2 Categorized 
Exemption (Section 15302) which addresses replacement or 
reconstruction of existing structures and facilities at the same 
site.  These exemptions have been determined by the Secretary 

29 of 134



7 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

of Resources to not have a significant effect on the environment. 
In addition, as USD will maintain coordination with PG&E and 
ACWD and comply with their requirements, no impacts will 
occur.  See Section 3 for edits to Chapter 3 Section S of the 
IS/MND. 
 
 

2-12.  The following ACWD contacts are provided so that 
USD can coordinate with ACWD as needed during the CEQA 
process: 
 
 Michelle Myers, Groundwater Resources Manager, at 

(510) 668-4454, or by email at 
michelle.myers@acwd.com, for coordination regarding 
ACWD's groundwater resources, groundwater wells, 
and drilling permits.   

 
 Juniet Rotter, Development Services Manager, at (510) 

668-4472, or by email at juniet.rotter@acwd.com, for 
coordination regarding public water systems and water 
service. 

 

Thank you for your contact information. 

Union City 3-1.  The City notes that relative to cul-de-sac acquisitions, 
USD must submit a preliminary application to allow the City 
to provide feedback.  Additionally, the preliminary 
application should include details on any projects within 
Phase 1A that will require a building permit. 
 

USD will work with the City on the proposed acquisition of the 
current right-of-way and provide information necessary for the 
City to evaluate the proposal.  The District has and will continue 
to work with the City on the processing of any required building 
and grading permits.” 

3-2.  The City notes that the Shri Guru Ravidass Bay Area 
facility just north of the plant received land use approvals in 
December 2017 and the applicant is in the process of 
obtaining building permits. 

See Section 3 of the Response Document for edits to page 31. 

 

30 of 134

mailto:michelle.myers@acwd.com
mailto:juniet.rotter@acwd.com


8 
 

Table 1 
Comments and Responses 

Initial Study and Mitigation Negative Declaration 
ETSU Phase 1 Program  

 
AGENCY COMMENT RESPONSE 

 
3-3.  The WWTP is in the 100-year floodplain which requires 
compliance with the City's Floodplain Ordinance.  In 
addition, a C-LOMR (conditional letter of map revisions) 
must be obtained from FEMA. 
 

The City and Hazen and Sawyer have consulted with the City 
Engineer acting as the local Floodplain Administrator and will 
continue a dialogue to comply with the City's Floodplain 
Ordinance.   

3-4.  The City notes that Control Measure Q1 requires the 
selected Contractor(s) for each ETSU Program project to 
prepare a traffic control plan (TCP) for USD review and 
approval prior to start of construction.  The City requests a 
copy of the TCP be submitted to the City's Public Works 
Department for review and approval prior to start of 
construction.   

Any Traffic Control Plan prepared by a Contractor will be 
provided to the City's Public Works Department for review and 
approval prior to start of construction.  See Section 3 of the 
Response  Document for edits to Control Measure Q1. 

 

31 of 134



32 of 134



33 of 134



34 of 134



35 of 134



36 of 134



37 of 134



38 of 134



39 of 134



40 of 134



41 of 134



42 of 134



43 of 134



44 of 134



45 of 134



46 of 134



47 of 134



48 of 134



49 of 134



50 of 134



51 of 134



52 of 134



53 of 134



54 of 134



55 of 134



56 of 134



57 of 134



58 of 134



59 of 134



60 of 134



61 of 134



62 of 134



63 of 134



64 of 134



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE OF DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY 
AND INTENT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for 
Union Sanitary District's Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program and is 
available for public review and comment. The document can be reviewed at the Union Sanitary 
District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California. 
 
PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT PERIOD:  March 9, 2021 through April 8, 2021.  
Please send all comments to Ric Pipkin, Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, 
California 94587-2508. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION:  The ETSU Program was developed to meet 
the wastewater treatment and disposal needs for USD over the next 20 to 40 years.  Phase 1 is the 
most immediate priority for the District's Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant and calls for the 
first phase of Secondary Treatment Process Improvements by 2027.  Through four projects, 
Phase 1 will provide for improvements to the aeration basins (ABs) and addition of AB8, new 
secondary clarifiers, effluent facilities, equalization, and replacement of the existing 
Administration and Control Buildings with a new campus layout. 
 
INITIAL STUDY:  An Initial Study was prepared to determine if the proposed Project would 
result in significant adverse impacts on the environment.  That document concluded that while 
several potential adverse environmental impacts could result from the Project, measures could be 
used to effectively mitigate these impacts.  Accordingly, it has been determined that a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration is appropriate for the Phase 1 Program. 
 
TO REVIEW DOCUMENT:  Copies of the Initial Study and proposed Mitigated Negative 
Declaration can be reviewed at the Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, 
California or on the District's website at https://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov.  All written 
comments on the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration must be submitted no later than the 
April 8, 2021 deadline. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  The Union Sanitary District Board of Directors will conduct a public 
hearing to receive oral comments at a regularly scheduled meeting on March 22, 2021, beginning 
at 4:00 p.m.  The Board will consider adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration at a 
regularly scheduled meeting on May 10, 2021, beginning at 4:00 p.m. 
 
TOXIC SITES:  The Alvarado WWTP site is identified as a program cleanup site as 
enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the California Government Code due to historical 
occurrence of petroleum hydrocarbon contamination in several areas of the plant site. 

      March 3,2021   
Ric Pipkin   Date 
Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager 

65 of 134

https://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/


Notice of Determination Appendix D 
 
To:  From:  
 Office of Planning and Research Public Agency:  Union Sanitary District  
 U.S. Mail: Street Address: Address:  5072 Benson Road  
 P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth Street, Rm 113  Union City, CA 94587  
 Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814 Contact:  Ric Pipkin  
  Phone:  (510) 477-7562  
    
 County Clerk Lead Agency (if different from above): 
 County of:  Alameda      
 Address:  1106 Madison Street, First Floor  Address:    
   Oakland, CA  94607      
  Contact:    
  Phone:    
    
SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public Resources 

Code. 
 
State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): SCH No. 2021030219 

Project Title:          ETSU Phase 1 Program  

Project Applicant:                       Union Sanitary District          

Project Location (include county):                       Alvarado WWTP, Union City, Alameda County          

Project Description:  The ETSU Program was developed to meet the wastewater treatment and disposal needs for 
USD over the next 20 to 40 years.  Phase 1 is the most immediate priority for the District's Alvarado Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and calls for the first phase of Secondary Treatment Process Improvements by 2027.  Through four 
projects, Phase 1 will provide for improvements to the aeration basins (ABs) and addition of AB8, new secondary 
clarifiers, effluent facilities, equalization, and replacement of the existing Administration and Control Buildings with a 
new campus layout. 
 
This is to advise that the                     Union Sanitary District                       has approved the above  
             Lead Agency or     Responsible Agency 
 
described project on  May 10, 2021         and has made the following determinations regarding the above 
               (Date) 
described project: 
  
1. The project [  will    will not] have a significant effect on the environment. 
2.   An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
   A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
3. Mitigation measures [  were    were not] made a condition of the approval of the project. 
4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [ was    was not] adopted for this project. 
5. A Statement of Overriding Considerations [  was    was not] adopted for this project. 
6. Findings [  were    were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
 
This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the Negative 
Declaration, is available to the General Public at:   
                                         Union Sanitary District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587  
 
Signature (Public Agency)   Title   
                                                          
Date        Date Received for filing at OPR   
 
 
Authority cited:  Sections 21083, Public Resources Code. 
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011 
66 of 134



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
ADOPT THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION 

MONITORING AND REPORTING PLAN FOR THE ENHANCED TREATMENT AND 
SITE UPGRADE PHASE 1 PROGRAM AND APPROVE THE ENHANCED 

TREATMENT AND SITE UPGRADE PHASE 1 PROGRAM  
 
 WHEREAS, the Union Sanitary District (the “District”) has prepared and 
distributed for review and comment the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(the “IS/MND”) of potential environmental impacts of the Enhanced Treatment and Site 
Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District provided a public comment period from March 9, 2021 
through April 8, 2021 and conducted a public hearing to accept public comment on 
March 22, 2021 and no comments were made; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration was noticed in accordance with 
Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Sections 15072 and 15105; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District received written comments from three public agencies 
and no comments from members of the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District prepared a Response Document to address the 
comments and make minor clarifying revisions to the text of the IS/MND; and 
  
 WHEREAS, although the proposed Project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, mitigation measures included in the IS/MND would reduce all of the 
impacts to a less than significant level. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Union 
Sanitary District that: 
 

1. The Board hereby makes the following findings and determinations with 
respect to the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program 
IS/MND:  

 
a. The Board has reviewed and considered the draft MND, comments 

received during the public review period, and the District’s written 
responses to any comments prior to acting on the project. 

 
b. The revisions to the MND in response to comments constitute clarifying or 

amplifying revisions or insignificant modifications, under CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15073.5, and no recirculation of the MND is required. 
 

c. The MND adequately describes the environmental impacts of the Project.  
On the basis of the whole record before it, the Board finds that there is no 

67 of 134



substantial evidence that the project, as mitigated, will have a significant 
effect on the environment. 

 
d. The MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and the CEQA 

Guidelines. 
 
e. The MND is complete and adequate and reflects the Board’s independent 

judgment and analysis as to the environmental effects of the Project. 
 

2. The Board hereby adopts the MND for the proposed Enhanced Treatment and 
Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program and hereby approves the Enhanced Treatment 
and Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program, including the Phase 1A–AB Improvements 
Project. 
 

3. The Board hereby adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
included in the IS/MND, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

4. The Board directs staff to file a notice of determination with the County Clerk of 
Alameda County. 

5. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15091(e), the documents and other 
materials that constitute the record of proceedings upon which the Board of 
Directors has based its recommendations are located in and may be obtained 
from, the Office of the Union Sanitary District at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, 
94587.  The Board Clerk is the custodian of records for all matters before the 
Board. 

  

68 of 134



 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly 
and regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary 
District, in Alameda County, California, held on the 10th day of May 2021. 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

        _______________________ 
        TOM HANDLEY 
        President, Board of Directors 
Attest:        Union Sanitary District 
 
 
_________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
        
 

69 of 134



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 10, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 

TITLE: Award the Construction Contract of the Emergency Outfall Improvements 
Project to Garney Pacific, Inc. (This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 
Andrew Baile, Assistant Engineer 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board award the construction contract, including Bid Alternate A, for the 
Emergency Outfall Improvements Project (Project) to Garney Pacific, Inc. (Garney) in the amount 
of $1,399,700.  Funds for the project have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund 
and Capacity Fund. 

Discussion 
The Project was advertised for bids on March 30, 2021.  Five bids were received and opened on 
April 27, 2021 with the results shown in the table below.  Please refer to the attached Table 1 for 
a detailed breakdown of the bids. 

Contractor Total Contract Price 
Garney Pacific, Inc. 

Tracy, CA $1,399,700 

JMB Construction, Inc 
South San Francisco, CA $1,498,770 

McGuire and Hester 
Alameda, CA $1,534,014 

70 of 134



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

Contractor Total Contract Price 
Con-Quest Contractors, Inc. 

San Francisco, CA $1,599,890 

Granite Rock Company 
San Jose, CA $1,603,475 

 
The Engineer’s Estimate for the Project’s Total Contract Price is $1,250,000.  The bids ranged from 
12% to 28% above the Engineer’s Estimate.  Staff, design consultant, Garney, and another bidder 
believe that the higher bids were due to the extensive permitting requirements, restrictive 
construction schedule, and higher material costs. 
 
The Total Contract Price includes one bid alternate.  Bid Alternate A is for providing “Acts of God” 
Insurance that indemnifies against the loss of or damage to the concrete outlet structure during 
construction, under the following conditions:  earthquakes in excess of a magnitude 3.5 on the 
Richter Scale and tidal waves.  Garney’s bid for Bid Alternate A is reasonably priced, and staff 
recommends including it in the construction contract. 
 
Staff reviewed the apparent low bid submitted by Garney and found no irregularities.  No bid 
protests were received by the District.  Garney has confirmed that they will construct the Project 
as bid.  Garney is a General Engineering Class A licensed contractor who has successfully 
completed multiple projects that included large diameter pipeline installations, concrete outlet 
structure construction, access structure installations, and slip-line pipe rehabilitations for Contra 
Costa Water District, City of Dublin, and developers of large residential subdivisions.  Staff 
contacted several of Garney’s references and received positive comments on their performance 
on those projects. 
 
The contractor has 210 calendar days to complete project construction, which places the 
estimated substantial completion in December 2021.  Staff plans to hire a consultant to provide 
construction management and inspection services for the Project.  
 
 
Background 
The District’s Alvarado Effluent Pump Station normally pumps the final effluent from the 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) to the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) 
system where the combined effluent from the EBDA agencies is dechlorinated and discharged 
from the EBDA Common Outfall to Lower San Francisco Bay.  The District has an NPDES permit 
to discharge final effluent to Old Alameda Creek through the Emergency Outfall pipeline and flap 
gate during wet weather and when the capacity of the EBDA system is maximized.  The District 
doses calcium thiosulfate to dechlorinate the final effluent prior to discharging to the creek. 
 

71 of 134



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
The Emergency Outfall pipeline exits the WWTP at the northwest corner of the property and 
crosses the private parcel owned by Bertelson Pre Cast Steps Inc. (Bertelson) and the levee road 
owned by the Alameda County Flood Control & Water Conservation District (ACFC&WCD) before 
extending into the Old Alameda Creek.  The creek is influenced by the tidal cycle, and the 
Emergency Outfall flap gate is normally submerged below the water during high tides and is 
exposed during low tides.  This presents a maintenance challenge as water brings in sediment 
that routinely buries the flap gate and promotes vegetation growth, which then impedes the 
operation of the flap gate.  The District currently inspects the flap gate every month and 
schedules staff to clear the vegetation growth.  Figures 1 through 3 show the location of the 
emergency outfall pipeline and photos of the discharge at the Old Alameda Creek. 
 
The purpose of the Project is to make improvements to the Emergency Outfall to reduce the 
maintenance activities associated with the Emergency Outfall flap gate and increase the 
reliability of its operation during wet weather events. 
 
Because most of the construction will take place in the Old Alameda Creek and within the parcels 
owned by ACFC&WCD and Bertelson, the District needed to acquire permits from multiple 
agencies, easements from ACFC&WCD, and property from Bertelson. 
 
Staff began the permit acquisition process in March 2018 and completed it in February 2021.  The 
permitting agencies included the following: 

• U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
• U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
• Regional Water Quality Control Board 
• San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
• California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
• California State Lands Commission 

 
Staff should complete the property purchase from Bertelson in May 2021 and the easement 
acquisition from ACFC&WCD by June 2021. 
 
Brown and Caldwell completed the Project’s design in January 2021.  The Project’s scope 
includes: 

1. Replacement of 48-inch diameter pipeline that extends into Old Alameda Creek. 
2. Rehabilitation of the existing 48-inch diameter pipeline under the ACFC&WCD levee road 

by slip-lining. 
3. Construction of a redundant, parallel, 48-inch diameter pipeline from the Old Alameda 

Creek to inside the WWTP property line. 

72 of 134



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

4. Construction of a new riser pipe and cap on the new redundant pipeline to allow access 
for inspection and cleaning. 

5. Installation of a temporary sheet pile cofferdam in Old Alameda Creek to allow 
construction of the new concrete outlet structure. 

6. Construction of a concrete outlet structure consisting of a slab, headwalls, and wing walls. 
7. Construction of an access vault and drainage piping system on the existing outfall pipeline 

located in the WWTP property. 
8. Implementation of all mitigation measures in the Project’s Mitigated Negative 

Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan. 
9. Bypass contingency allowance, when directed by the District, will provide a bypass piping 

system to discharge final effluent to the Old Alameda Creek if construction impacts the 
availability of the emergency outfall during wet weather. 

Previous Board Action 
November 13, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Brown and Caldwell to provide design services for the Project. 
 
June 25, 2018, the Board conducted a public hearing to receive comments regarding the Initial 
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Project.  No comments were received 
at the public hearing.  
 
December 10, 2018, the Board adopted the MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan 
for the Project for the purpose of filing the Notice of Determination. 
 
July 22, 2019, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute a lease agreement with the 
California State Lands Commission for the use, operation, and maintenance of an existing 48-inch 
diameter reinforced concrete emergency outfall pipeline, concrete outlet structure, access 
stairway, riprap chute, and temporary sheet pile cofferdam located along the Old Alameda Creek 
Flood Control Channel in the City of Union City. 
 
April 13, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to Task 
Order No. 2 with Brown and Caldwell to provide additional design services for the Project. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/ACB;mb 
 
Attachments:  Figure 1 – Site Plan 
 Figure 2 – Emergency Outfall Improvements Site Location 
 Figure 3 – Existing Outfall Flap Gate Photos 
 Table 1 – Bid Tabulation Sheet 

Agreement 

73 of 134



Covered Storage Building

Field Operations Building

Primary Digester #6

Alvarado Effluent Pump Station

Final Effluent Valve Box

60 inch Final Effluent Pipeline to EBDA

Emergency Outfall Flap Gate
Veasy Street

Aboveground Emergency Outfall
Pipeline and Control Valves

30 inch to 60 inch Emergency Outfall

74 of 134

andrewb
Text Box
Figure 1: Site Plan

andrewb
Text Box
EBDA (Alvarado Effluent) Pump Station including pipelines to EBDA and the Emergency Outfall.



High Tide

Flap Gate

Low Tide

Flap Gate

Covered Storage Building

75 of 134

andrewb
Text Box
Figure 2: Emergency Outfall Improvements Site Location

andrewb
Text Box
Inset pictures show emergency outfall flap gate under current high and low tide conditions.  Both photographs taken September 13, 2016.



Low Tide 2017

Flap Gate

Flap Gate

Low Tide 2016

76 of 134

andrewb
Text Box
Figure 3: Existing Outfall Flap Gate

andrewb
Text Box
The 2016 photograph was taken after maintenance had been performed, which included exercising of the flap gate and clearing of surrounding sediment.  The 2017 photograph shows the current condition of the flap gate.



Table 1 ‐ Bid Tabulation Sheet

Emergency Outfall Improvements Project, Project No. 800-494

Bid Opening: 11:30 am, April 27, 2021

Engineer's 

Estimate

Unit Bid 
Price

Total Bid Price
Unit Bid 

Price
Total Bid Price

Unit Bid 
Price

Total Bid Price

1

Cost for completing all Work included as part of 
Contract Documents for Project No. 800-494, 
except as specified under bid items 2 through 
16.

LS 1  LS   $              202,000.00   LS   $              132,000.00   LS   $                  5,500.00 

2 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1  $           50,475.00   LS   $                69,000.00   LS   $                70,000.00   LS   $              217,000.00 

3 Clear and Grub LS 1  $                 485.00   LS   $                25,000.00   LS   $                12,000.00   LS   $                  6,000.00 

4 Abandonment/Removal of existing facilities LS 1  $           11,153.00   LS   $                30,000.00   LS   $                17,000.00   LS   $                13,000.00 

5
Replacement of existing CMP with CCFRPM 
pipe and fittings by open-cut = 48-inch diameter

LF 20  $         103,493.00   $    2,750.00   $                55,000.00   $    3,100.00   $                62,000.00   $    2,529.00   $                50,580.00 

6
Rehabilitation of 48-inch diameter pipeline by slip
lining method

LF 61  $           46,535.00   $    1,200.00   $                73,200.00   $        820.00   $                50,020.00   $    1,677.00   $              102,297.00 

7
Construction of CCFRPM by open-cut - 48-inch 
diameter

LF 93  $         243,216.00   $    1,500.00   $              139,500.00   $    1,550.00   $              144,150.00   $    2,194.00   $              204,042.00 

8 Construction of concrete outlet structure LS 1  $         140,425.00   LS   $              229,000.00   LS   $              340,000.00   LS   $              262,000.00 

9 Removal and disposal of sediment LS 1  $           73,650.00   LS   $                40,000.00   LS   $                45,000.00   LS   $                46,000.00 

10 Placement of stone riprap CY 90  $           53,591.00   $        285.00   $                25,650.00   $        320.00   $                28,800.00   $        152.00   $                13,680.00 

11
Construction of 72-inch access vault and blow-
off piping system

LS 1  $         101,762.00   LS   $              100,000.00   LS   $              115,000.00   LS   $              107,000.00 

12
Construction of redundant pipe access riser and 
cap

LS 1  LS   $                30,000.00   LS   $                33,000.00   LS   $                46,000.00 

13 Site Restoration LS 1  $           18,843.00   LS   $                18,000.00   LS   $                18,000.00   LS   $                  7,500.00 

14 Hauling and Disposal of Hazardous Material TON 1  $                 377.00   $        850.00   $                     850.00   $        300.00   $                     300.00   $    1,915.00   $                  1,915.00 

15 Bypass Contingency Allowance LS 1  $         200,000.00   LS   $              200,000.00   LS   $              200,000.00   LS   $              200,000.00 

16

Cost for providing all shoring and bracing on 
all Bid Items above including but not limited 
to that as required by Sections 6700-6708 of 
the Labor Code

LS 1  $         205,247.00   LS   $              160,000.00   LS   $              230,000.00   LS   $              250,000.00 

Total Base Bid  $      1,249,252.00  1,397,200.00$            1,497,270.00$        1,532,514.00$       
BID ALTERNATE A ‐$                            2,500.00$                    1,500.00$                    1,500.00$                   

Total 1,249,252.00$    1,399,700.00$            1,498,770.00$            1,534,014.00$           

Unit
Estimated 
Quantity

MCGUIRE AND HESTERGARNEY PACIFIC JMB CONSTRUCTION
Bid Item 

No.
Bid Item

77 of 134



Table 1 ‐ Bid Tabulation Sheet

Emergency Outfall Improvements Project, Project No. 800-494

Bid Opening: 11:30 am, April 27, 2021

Engineer's 

Estimate

1

Cost for completing all Work included as part of 
Contract Documents for Project No. 800-494, 
except as specified under bid items 2 through 
16.

LS 1

2 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1  $           50,475.00 

3 Clear and Grub LS 1  $                 485.00 

4 Abandonment/Removal of existing facilities LS 1  $           11,153.00 

5
Replacement of existing CMP with CCFRPM 
pipe and fittings by open-cut = 48-inch diameter

LF 20  $         103,493.00 

6
Rehabilitation of 48-inch diameter pipeline by slip
lining method

LF 61  $           46,535.00 

7
Construction of CCFRPM by open-cut - 48-inch 
diameter

LF 93  $         243,216.00 

8 Construction of concrete outlet structure LS 1  $         140,425.00 

9 Removal and disposal of sediment LS 1  $           73,650.00 

10 Placement of stone riprap CY 90  $           53,591.00 

11
Construction of 72-inch access vault and blow-
off piping system

LS 1  $         101,762.00 

12
Construction of redundant pipe access riser and 
cap

LS 1

13 Site Restoration LS 1  $           18,843.00 

14 Hauling and Disposal of Hazardous Material TON 1  $                 377.00 

15 Bypass Contingency Allowance LS 1  $         200,000.00 

16

Cost for providing all shoring and bracing on 
all Bid Items above including but not limited 
to that as required by Sections 6700-6708 of 
the Labor Code

LS 1  $         205,247.00 

Total Base Bid  $      1,249,252.00 

BID ALTERNATE A ‐$                           

Total 1,249,252.00$   

Unit
Estimated 
Quantity

Bid Item 
No.

Bid Item Unit Bid 
Price

Total Bid Price
Unit Bid 

Price
Total Bid Price

 LS   $              100,000.00   LS   $                  1,000.00 

 LS   $                75,000.00   LS   $                75,000.00 

 LS   $                25,000.00   LS   $                45,000.00 

 LS   $                42,000.00   LS   $                30,000.00 

 $    2,800.00   $                56,000.00   $    3,250.00   $                65,000.00 

 $    1,640.00   $              100,040.00   $    1,900.00   $              115,900.00 

 $    1,650.00   $              153,450.00   $    2,100.00   $              195,300.00 

 LS   $              215,000.00   LS   $              200,000.00 

 LS   $                60,000.00   LS   $                50,000.00 

 $        490.00   $                44,100.00   $        350.00   $                31,500.00 

 LS   $                70,000.00   LS   $              300,000.00 

 LS   $                50,000.00   LS   $                55,000.00 

 LS   $                53,000.00   LS   $                  7,500.00 

 $        300.00   $                     300.00   $        850.00   $                     275.00 

 LS   $              200,000.00   LS   $              200,000.00 

 LS   $              350,000.00   LS   $              225,000.00 

1,593,890.00$        1,596,475.00$       
6,000.00$                    7,000.00$                   

1,599,890.00$            1,603,475.00$           

GRANITE ROCK COMPANY
CON-QUEST CONTRACTORS, 

INC

78 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 1 OF 8 

AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
 

Project No. 800-494 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded, in duplicate, this ___________________, 
between the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (“District”), Union City, California, and GARNEY 
PACIFIC, INC. ("Contractor"), License No 999415. 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

1. That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, 
to be made and performed by the District, and under the conditions expressed in the two 
bonds, bearing even date with these presents, and hereunto annexed, the Contractor agrees 
with the District, at his/her own proper cost and expense, to do all the work and furnish all the 
materials necessary to construct and complete in good workmanlike and substantial manner 
the project entitled: Emergency Outfall Improvements Project (Project No. 800-494) in 
strict conformity with the plans and specifications prepared therefor, which said plans and 
specifications are hereby specially referred to and by said reference made a part hereof. 

2. Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the 
parties herein contained and to be performed, the Contractor hereby agrees to complete the 
work in accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the Contract Documents for 
the sum of One Million Three Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred  Dollars 
($1,399,700.00) (the “Contract Price”) computed in accordance with Contractor’s accepted 
proposal dated April 27 , 2021, which accepted proposal is incorporated herein by reference 
thereto as if herein fully set forth.  The sum includes Bid Alternate A that has been accepted 
by the District and is hereby incorporated in the Agreement.  Compensation shall be based 
upon the lump sum bid items plus the unit prices stated in the Bid Schedule times the actual 
quantities or units of work and materials performed or furnished. The further terms, conditions, 
and covenants of this Agreement are set forth in the Contract Documents, each of which is by 
this reference made a part hereof. Payments are to be made to the Contractor in accordance 
with the provisions of the Contract Documents and the Technical Specifications in legally 
executed and regularly issued warrants of the District, drawn on the appropriate fund or funds 
as required by law and order of the District thereof. 

3. The District hereby promises and agrees with the said Contractor to employ, and does 
hereby employ, the said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to 
the terms and conditions herein contained and referred to, for the Contract Price, and hereby 
contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions set forth in the 
Contract Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the 
covenants herein contained. 

4. The Contractor and any subcontractor performing or contracting any work shall comply 
with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code for all workers, laborers and 
mechanics of all crafts, classifications or types, including, but necessarily limited to the 
following: 

(a) The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of Section 1810 to 
1815, inclusive, of the California Labor Code relating to working hours. The Contractor 

79 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 2 OF 8 

shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25) for each 
worker employed in the execution of the Contract by the Contractor or by any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted 
to work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any 
one calendar week, unless such worker receives compensation for all hours worked in 
excess of eight (8) hours at not less than 1-1/2 times the basic rate of pay. 

(b) Pursuant to the provision of California Labor Code, Sections 1770 et. seq., the 
Contractor and any subcontractor under him shall pay not less than the prevailing rate 
of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of 
Industrial Relations. Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code Section 
1773.2, the Contractor is hereby advised that copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and a general prevailing rate for holidays, Saturdays and Sundays and overtime 
work in the locality in which the work is to be performed for each craft, classification, 
or type of worker required to execute the Contract, are on file in the office of the District, 
which copies shall be made available to any interested party on request. The 
Contractor shall post a copy of said prevailing rate of per diem wages at each job site. 

(c) As required by Section 1773.1 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor 
shall pay travel and subsistence payments to each worker needed to execute the work, 
as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective 
bargaining agreements filed in accordance with this Section. 

(d) To establish such travel and subsistence payments, the representative of any 
craft, classification, or type of workman needed to execute the contracts shall file with 
the Department of Industrial Relations fully executed copies of collective bargaining 
agreements for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved. Such 
agreements shall be filed within 10 days after their execution and thereafter shall 
establish such travel and subsistence payments whenever filed 30 days prior to the 
call for bids. 

(e) The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 1775 of the 
California Labor Code and shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit not more than two 
hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of 
worker needed to execute the contract. The Contractor shall pay each worker an 
amount equal to the difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid 
worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which a worker was paid less than 
the prevailing wage rate. 

(f) As required under the provisions of Section 1776 of the California Labor Code, 
Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the 
name, address, social security number, work classification, and straight time and 
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to 
each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in 
connection with the public work. Said payroll shall be certified and shall be available 
for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the Contractor on the 
following basis: 

(1) A certified copy of an employee's payroll record shall be made available 
for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized 
representative on request. 

(2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to the 

80 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 3 OF 8 

District, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations. 

(3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for 
copies thereof; provided, however, that a request by the public shall be made 
through the District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division 
of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested payroll records have not 
been provided pursuant to subparagraph 4(e) herein, the requesting party 
shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation 
by the Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request 
was made. The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal 
offices of the Contractor. 

The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms 
provided by the division. 

Certified payroll records shall be submitted electronically as required under 
California Labor Code Section 1776 to the Labor Commissioner pursuant to 
California Code of Regulations Chapter 8, Section 16404. 

Each Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records, enumerated in 
Paragraph 4(f) with the entity that requested the records within 10 days after 
receipt of a written request. Any copy of records made available for inspection 
as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by the 
District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to 
prevent disclosure of an individual's name, address, and social security 
number. The name and address of the Contractor awarded the contract or 
performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated. The Contractor shall 
inform the District of the location of the records enumerated under Paragraph 
4(f) including the street address, city and county, and shall, within 5 working 
days, provide a notice of change of location and address. The Contractor shall 
have 10 days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice 
specifying in what respects the Contractor must comply with this Paragraph 
4(f). In the event that the Contractor fails to comply within the 10-day period, 
he or she shall, as a penalty to the state or the District, forfeit one hundred 
dollars ($100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until 
strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, 
these penalties shall be withheld from progress payments then due. 
Responsibility for compliance with Paragraph 4(f) lies with the Contractor. 

(g) The Contractor and any subcontractors shall, when they employ any person in 
any apprenticeable craft or trade, apply to the joint apprenticeship committee 
administering the apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the area of the 
construction site for a certificate approving the Contractor or subcontractor under the 
apprenticeship standards for the employment and training of apprentices in the area 
or industry affected; and shall comply with all other requirements of Section 1777.5 of 
the California Labor Code. The responsibility of compliance with California Labor Code 
Section 1777.5 during the performance of this contract rests with the Contractor. 
Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.7, in the event the Contractor willfully 
fails to comply with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1777.5, the 

81 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 4 OF 8 

Contractor shall be denied the right to bid on any public works contract for up to three 
(3) years from the date noncompliance is determined and be assessed civil penalties. 

(h) In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
(commencing with Section 1860), and Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 4 (commencing with 
Section 3700) of the California Labor Code, the Contractor is required to secure the 
payment of compensation to its employees and for that purpose obtain and keep in 
effect adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. If the Contractor, in the sole 
discretion of the District satisfies the District of the responsibility and capacity under 
the applicable Workers' Compensation Laws, if any, to act as self-insurer, the 
Contractor may so act, and in such case, the insurance required by this paragraph 
need not be provided. 

The Contractor is advised of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor 
Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that 
Code and shall comply with such provisions and have Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 per accident before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Contract. 

The Notice to Proceed with the Work under this Contract will not be issued, and the 
Contractor shall not commence work, until the Contractor submits written evidence 
that it has obtained full Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for all persons 
whom it employs or may employ in carrying out the work under this Contract. This 
insurance shall be in accordance with the requirements of the most current and 
applicable state Workers' Compensation Insurance Laws. In accordance with the 
provisions of Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor in signing this 
agreement certifies to the District as true the following statement: "I am aware of the 
provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be 
insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions 
before commencing the performance of the work of this contract." 

A subcontractor is not allowed to commence work on the project until verification of 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage has been obtained and verified by the 
Contractor and submitted to the Construction Manager for the District’s review and 
records. 

(i) In accordance with the provisions of Section 1727 of the California Labor Code, 
the District, before making payment to the Contractor of money due under a contract 
for public works, shall withhold and retain therefrom all wages and penalties which 
have been forfeited pursuant to any stipulation in the contract, and the terms of 
Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 
1720). But no sum shall be withheld, retained or forfeited, except from the final 
payment, without a full investigation by either the Division of Labor Standards 
Enforcement or by the District. 

5. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be 
any conflict between the terms of this Agreement the instrument and the bid proposal of said 
Contractor, then this Agreement instrument shall control, and nothing herein contained shall 
be considered as an acceptance of the said terms of said proposal conflicting herewith. 

6. The Contractor agrees to provide and maintain insurance coverage, and to indemnify 
and save harmless the parties named and in the manner set forth in Section 00800-2.0, 

82 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 5 OF 8 

LIABILITY AND INSURANCE, of the Supplementary General Conditions of the 
Specifications. 

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth herein, shall include a 
duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code; provided, however, 
that nothing herein shall be construed to require Contractor to indemnify against any 
responsibility or liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 

7. The Contractor shall diligently prosecute the work so that it shall be substantially 
completed within the time specified in Section 00800-1.1, Time Allowed for Completion. 

8. Except as otherwise may be provided herein, Contractor hereby expressly guarantees 
for one (1) full year from the date of the substantial completion of the work under this 
agreement and acceptance thereof by the District, to repair or replace any part of the work 
performed hereunder which constitutes a defect resulting from the use of inferior or defective 
materials, equipment or workmanship. If, within said period, any repairs or replacements in 
connection with the work are, in the opinion of the District, rendered necessary as the result 
of the use of inferior or defective materials, equipment or workmanship, Contractor agrees, 
upon receipt of notice from District, and without expense to District, to promptly repair or 
replace such material or workmanship and/or correct any and all defects therein. If Contractor, 
after such notice, fails to proceed promptly to comply with the terms of this guarantee, District 
may perform the work necessary to effectuate such correction and recover the cost thereof 
from the Contractor and/or its sureties. 

In special circumstances where a particular item of work or equipment is placed in continuous 
service before substantial completion of the Work, the correction period for that item may start 
to run from an earlier date. This date shall be agreed upon in writing by the Contractor and 
District on or before the item is placed in continuous service. 

Any and all other special guarantees which may be applicable to definite parts of the work 
under this agreement shall be considered as an additional guarantee and shall not reduce or 
limit the guarantee as provided by Contractor pursuant to this paragraph during the first year 
of the life of such guarantee. 

9. The Contractor shall provide, on the execution of this Agreement, a good and sufficient 
corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price, 
which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00610, FORM OF 
PERFORMANCE BOND, and be conditioned upon the faithful performance of all work 
required to be performed by the Contractor under this Agreement. Said bond shall be liable 
for any and all penalties and obligations which may be incurred by Contractor under this 
Agreement. The corporate surety bond shall be issued by a corporate surety that possesses 
a minimum rating from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that is approved by the District. The 
corporate surety shall be authorized to conduct business in California. At its discretion, the 
District may request that a certified copy of the certificate of authority of the insurer issued by 
the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California be submitted by the surety to the 
District. At its discretion, the District may also require the insurer to provide copies of its most 
recent annual statement and quarterly statement filed with the Department of Insurance 
pursuant to Article 10 (commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 1 of 
the Insurance Code. 

In addition to the bond required under Paragraph 9, hereof, Contractor shall furnish a good 
and sufficient corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Contract Price, which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00620, 
PAYMENT BOND, and conform strictly with the provisions of Sections 9550 et seq. of the 
Civil Code, and all amendments thereto. The corporate surety bond shall be issued by a 

83 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 6 OF 8 

corporate surety that possesses a minimum rating from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that 
is approved by the District. The corporate surety shall be authorized to conduct business in 
California. At its discretion, the District may request that a certified copy of the certificate of 
authority of the insurer issued by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California be 
submitted by the surety to the District. At its discretion, the District may also require the insurer 
to provide copies of its most recent annual statement and quarterly statement filed with the 
Department of Insurance pursuant to Article 10 (commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 
of Part 2 of Division 1 of the Insurance Code. 

11. The Contractor may substitute securities for the amounts retained by the District to 
ensure performance of the work in accordance with the provisions of Section 22300 of the 
Public Contract Code.  

12. The Contractor shall be provided the time period specified in Section 01340-2.0, 
MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT SUBSTITUTIONS, for submission of data substantiating a 
request for a substitution of an “or equal" item. 

13. As required by Section 6705 of the California Labor Code and in addition thereto, 
whenever work under the Contract involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five feet 
or more in depth, the Contractor shall submit in advance of excavations, a detailed plan 
showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker 
protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. 
If such plan varies from the shoring system standards established by the Construction Safety 
Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety in Title 8, Subchapter 4, Article 6, California Code 
of Regulations, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer employed 
by the Contractor, and all costs therefore shall be included in the price named in the Contract 
for completion of the work as set forth in the Contract Documents. Nothing in this Section shall 
be deemed to allow the use of a shoring, sloping, or other protective system less effective 
than that required by the Construction Safety Orders. Nothing in this Section shall be 
construed to impose tort liability on the District, the Design Consultant, Construction Manager 
or any of their agents, consultants, or employees. The District’s review of the Contractor’s 
excavation plan is only for general conformance to the California Construction Safety Orders. 

Prior to commencing any excavation, the Contractor shall designate in writing to the 
Construction Manager the “competent person(s)” with the authority and responsibilities 
designated in the Construction Safety Orders. 

14. In accordance with Section 7104 of the Public Contract Code, whenever any work 
involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below the 
surface, the provisions of Section 00700-7.2, Differing Site Conditions, shall apply. 

15. In accordance with Section 7103.5 of the Public Contract Code, the Contractor and 
subcontractors shall conform to the following requirements. In entering into a public works 
contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works 
contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the District all rights, 
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act 
(15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 
16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases 
of goods, materials or services pursuant to this Contract or the subcontract. Such assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the 
Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties. 

16. In accordance with Section 4552 of the Government Code, the Contractor shall 
conform to the following requirements. In submitting a bid to the District, the Contractor offers 
and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the District all rights, title, and interest 

84 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 7 OF 8 

in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 
15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of 
Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchase of goods, materials, 
or services by the Contractor for sale to the District pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor. 

17. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 7100, the acceptance by the Contractor of 
an undisputed payment made under the terms of the Contract shall operate as, and shall be, 
a release to the District, and their duly authorized agents, from all claim of and/or liability to 
the Contractor arising by virtue of the contract related to those amounts. Disputed contract 
claims in stated amounts may be specifically excluded by the Contractor from the operation 
of the release. 

18. In accordance with California Business and Professions Code Section 7030, the 
Contractor is required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License 
Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against contractors if a complaint 
regarding a patent act or omission is filed within four years of the date of the alleged violation. 
A complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed 
within 10 years of the date of the alleged violation. Any questions concerning the Contractor 
may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors’ State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, 
Sacramento, California 95826. 

19. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the District from any claims, choses in action or lawsuits, whereby any 
subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, laborer or any person who supplies work or 
materials to said work of improvement may claim damages, losses and expenses thereto 
arising out of or resulting from any claim for performance of work, including the legal defense 
of any stop notice action as well as attorney fees and costs. District may be required to engage 
separate legal counsel from that of the Contractor should District and Contractor be both 
named as defendants, cross-defendants or other parties to any such stop notice action in 
District’s sole discretion. Contractor shall be fully liable for any judgment or damages resulting 
from any claim for stop notice relief or other liability regarding payment for materials, supplies, 
labor or equipment under this contract. In claims against any person or entity indemnified 
under this paragraph by an employee of Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by them for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation 
under this paragraph shall not be limited in amount or type of damages, compensation or 
benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a subcontractor. In all cases, indemnification shall 
include attorney fees and court costs. 

Unless arising solely out of the active negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct of 
the District or the Design Consultant, the Contractor shall indemnity, defend and hold 
harmless: (1) the District and its Board of Directors, officers, employees, agents and 
representative; (ii) the Design Consultant and its consultants for the Work and their respective 
agents and employees; and (iii) if one is designated by the District for the work, the 
Construction Manager and its agents and employees (collectively “the Indemnified Parties”). 
The Contractor’s obligations hereunder include indemnity, defense and hold harmless of the 
Indemnified Parties from and against any and all damages, losses, claims, demands or 
liabilities whether for damages, losses or other relief, including, without limitation attorney’s 
fees and costs which arise, in whole or in part, from the Work, the Contract Documents or the 
acts, omissions or other conduct of the Contractor or any subcontractor or any person or entity 
engaged by them for the Work. The Contractor’s obligations under the foregoing include 
without limitation: (i) injuries to or death of persons; (ii) damage to property; or (iii) theft or loss 
of property; (iv) stop notice claims asserted by any person or entity in connection with the 
Work; and (v) other losses, liabilities, damages or costs resulting from, in whole or part, any 

85 of 134



 
 

 

 AGREEMENT  
 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

PAGE 8 OF 8 

acts, omissions or other conduct of Contractor, any of Contractor’s Subcontractors, of any tier, 
or any other person or entity employed directly or indirectly by Contractor in connection with 
the Work and their respective agents, officers or employees. If any action or proceeding, 
whether judicial, administrative, arbitration or otherwise, shall be commenced on account of 
any claim, demand or liability subject to Contractor’s obligations hereunder, and such action 
or proceeding names any of the Indemnified Parties as a party thereto, the Contractor, at its 
sole cost and expense, shall defend the District and the Design Consultant in such action or 
proceeding with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Parties named in such 
action or proceeding. In the event that there shall be any judgment, award, ruling, settlement, 
or other relief arising out of any such action or proceeding to which any of the Indemnified 
Parties are bound by, Contractor shall pay, satisfy or otherwise discharge any such judgment, 
award, ruling, settlement or relief. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
Indemnified Parties from any and all liability or responsibility arising out of any such judgment, 
award, ruling, settlement or relief. The Contractor’s obligations hereunder are binding upon 
Contractor’s Performance Bond Surety and these obligations shall survive notwithstanding 
Contractor’s completion of the Work or the termination of the Contract. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement this 

________________________. 

GARNEY PACIFIC, INC. 

By:     
 Bill E. Williams 
 President  
Address: 324 E. 11th, Suite: E2, Tracy, CA 95376 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

By:     
 Anjali Lathi 
 Board Secretary 
Address: 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California 94587 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 

     
 Karen W. Murphy 
 Attorney for Union Sanitary District 

86 of 134



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 10, 2020 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 

TITLE:  Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 1 with 
Western  Water  Constructors,  Inc.  for  the  Aeration  Blower  No.  11  Project. 
(This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 
Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Contract Change Order 
No. 1 with Western Water Constructors, Inc. (WW) in the amount of $101,145 for the Aeration 
Blower No. 11 Project (Project). 

Discussion 
Contract Change Order (CCO) No. 1 includes modifications to the ventilation system at the East 
Aeration Blower Building where Blower No. 11 will be  installed.   The major elements of  the 
modifications include: 

 Modifying the size of the building wall louvers and converting the exhaust louver into a
second supply louver.

 Adding an air filter bank to the second supply louver.

 Installing two supply fans and associated ductwork and supports.

 Replacing the existing skylights with three roof‐mounted relief hoods.

 Implementing  electrical  and  control  changes  in  support  of  the  ventilation  system
modifications.

87 of 134



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
Carollo’s  estimate  for  this  work  is  $80,000.    Staff  received  WW’s  quote  in  the  amount  of 
$118,834.   The difference  is mainly attributed to higher procurement costs for the two supply 
fans, ductwork, and supports.  For the supply fans, staff worked with the contractor to get more 
competitive quotes from another fan manufacturer.  With better pricing on the supply fans and 
savings from other items, staff negotiated the change order to $101,145. 
 
The contract change order includes a time‐extension request to extend substantial completion 
of the Project from September 19, 2021 to December 5, 2021.  The delay is mainly due to the 
long fabrication schedule of the new equipment added  in this change order.   The supply fans 
have  the  longest  fabrication  and  delivery  schedule  at  10  weeks.    The  time  extension  of  78 
calendar  days  will  be  non‐compensable.    In  lieu  of  paying  extended  overhead  to  WW,  the 
District will provide an electrical connection for their field office for the duration of the Project. 
 
Background 
On September 28, 2020, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to WW in 
the amount of $1,652,000.   The project was designed by Carollo Engineers and  construction 
management  is  being  provided  for  by  Tanner  Pacific,  Inc.  The  project  scope  includes  the 
following elements: 
 
•  Installation of a second high‐speed blower, Blower No. 11,  in the East Aeration Blower 

Building. 
•  Modifications  to  the  aeration  piping  system,  electrical  system,  and  other  associated 

systems to facilitate the addition of the new high‐speed blower. 
•  Improvements  to  the building’s ventilation system  to  improve  the performance of  the 

two high‐speed blowers. 
•  Replacement of the building’s roofing membrane system. 
•  Seismic retrofit to the building’s precast concrete panels. 
•  Miscellaneous structural concrete repairs to the building. 
 
On October 28, 2020, the District  issued the Notice to Proceed to WW.   The  improvements to 
the  building’s  ventilation  system  includes  the  relocation  of  the  existing  supply  fan  from  the 
north  building  louver  to  the  south  building  louver  (currently  a  passive  exhaust  louver)  and 
repurposing it as an exhaust fan.  The north louver would become a passive supply louver with 
an air  filter bank  to  remove dust  from  the  supply air entering  the building.   The exhaust  fan 
would  pull  outside  air  into  the  building  through  the  north  louver  and  discharge  the  excess 
supply air and heated building interior air out through the south louver.  During operation, the 
existing high‐speed Blower 12 and new high‐speed Blower 11 would also pull outside air  into 
the building through the north louver.  Altogether, the total supply air pulled into the building 
would be used for process air  in the aeration basins and for cooling of the blowers  inside the 
building.  Please refer to Figure 1 that shows the current design. 
 

88 of 134



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 
The building’s ventilation system  is critical for the operation of the high‐speed blowers, which 
are sensitive to dust and debris and can be damaged  if excessive dust and debris enter them.  
The air filter bank to be  installed behind the supply  louver would ensure that clean supply air 
enters the building.   However, during the submittal preparation phase,  it was discovered that 
the size of  the supply air  filter  that  fits  into  the existing supply  louver would result  in airflow 
velocities exceeding the rated capacity of the air filters and thus degrading their performance. 
 
After  reviewing  alternatives,  staff  and  Carollo  decided  to  upgrade  the  building’s  ventilation 
system more extensively to ensure the supply air entering the building is properly filtered and 
the volume of supply air  is  increased to help maintain the optimum operating temperature of 
the blowers.    The proposed  ventilation upgrade will modify  the  size of  the north  and  south 
louvers and install new supply fans and air filter banks at both louvers.  In addition, three roof‐
mounted  relief  hoods  will  be  installed  to  provide  passive  exhaust  of  excess  supply  air  and 
heated  building  interior  air.    The  ventilation  upgrade  will  also  accommodate  a  future  high‐
speed blower  that will be  installed  in  the East Aeration Blower Building during  the upcoming 
Aeration Basin Modifications Project of  the Enhanced Treatment  and  Site Upgrade Program.  
Please refer to Figure 2 that shows the ventilation system upgrade proposed in CCO No. 1. 
 
Previous Board Action 
November 11, 2019, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement and 
Task  Order  No.  1  with  Carollo  in  the  amount  of  $122,849  for  final  design  services  for  the 
Project. 
 
September 28, 2020, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to Western 
Water Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $1,652,000. 
 
October 12, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Carollo  in  the amount of $74,705  to provide engineering services during construction  for  the 
Project. 
 
December 14, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Tanner Pacific,  Inc.  in the amount of $258,800 to provide construction 
management  services  for  the  Aeration  Blower  No.  11  Project  and  Centrifuge  Building 
Improvements Project. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;mb 
 
Attachments:  Figure 1 – Original Ventilation System Design 

Figure 2 – Ventilation System Upgrade Proposed in CCO No. 1 
Contract Change Order No. 1 

89 of 134



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FIGURE 1 – ORIGINAL VENTILATION SYSTEM DESIGN FOR THE EAST AERATION BLOWER BUILDING 

90 of 134



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FIGURE 2 – VENTILATION SYSTEM UPGRADE PROPOSED IN CCO NO. 1 FOR THE EAST AERATION 
BLOWER BUILDING 

91 of 134



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER No. 01   
Union Sanitary District 

Aeration Blower No. 11 Project  
Project No. 900-528    

Item: Blower Room Intake Ventilation Modifications 
 
Contractor is hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do the following 
work not included in the plans and specifications of this contract.  All new work herein described shall be done in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the plans and specifications, except as specifically modified by this Contract Change 
Order. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:  
 
In accordance with Request for Quotation (RFQ) No. 2 dated February 2, 2021, and associated Design 
Clarification No. 3 dated February 5, 2021, provide all labor, material, and equipment to modify the HVAC 
ventilation system, including but not limited to the following: 
 

• Reduce the size of the two intake louvers as shown on drawing H01.  
• Provide and install two 15HP inline supply fans sized at 26,000 CFM each.  
• Provide additional inlet ductwork for the north supply fan.  
• Provide and install three roof mount relief hoods.  
• Provide and install a discrete output module to RIO-12 to allow for the “auto start” commands for each 

new supply fan.  
• Deletion of the work associated with the relocation of EX-EF-1 including associated electrical work and 

backdraft damper.  
• Deletion of the work associated with the field-mounted thermostat.  

 
Specification Section 01010-2.4.2, No. 9: The requirement to complete demolition of the existing HVAC system 
within 60 days of beginning HVAC demolition work is increased to 106 days. 
 
Specification Section 01510- 1.0: While Contractor remains responsible for providing at its own cost, all electric 
power required for the Project, the District is allowing the Contractor to connect to a single welding receptacle 
connection for the Contractor’s field office use. Contractor shall not overload the capacity of the welding 
receptacle connection. The temporary power is provided as-is with no guarantee of availability to the 
Contractor. The District shall not be liable for any costs or delays due to utility power or backup generation 
power failures. The use of this temporary power shall end with the completion of the Project. 
 
Interim Milestone No. 1, as defined in Specification Section 00800-1.1, is waived. 
 
A non-compensable time extension is granted for Project Substantial Completion, as defined in Specification 
Section 00800-1.1: 
 
Original Project Substantial Completion Date:   September 19, 2021 
Non-compensable Time Extension Granted in this CCO:  78 Calendar Days 
Revised Project Substantial Completion Date   December 5, 2021 
 
REFERENCES:    RFQ No. 2 
 
COST OF CHANGE:   $101,145 
 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT:      78 calendar days 
 
  

92 of 134



Contract Change Order No. 01 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 
Page 2 of 2 
 
We, the undersigned Contractor, have given careful consideration to all aspects of the change proposed and hereby 
agree.  This Contract Change Order constitutes full and complete compensation for all labor, equipment, materials, 
overhead, profit, any and all indirect costs and time adjustment, including and delay and rescheduling, required to 
perform the above described change and will accept this Contract Change Order as full and final payment. 
 
This document supplements the Contract Documents and all provisions of the Contract Documents will apply thereto.  It is 
understood that the Contract Change Order shall be effective when fully executed by the District. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACCEPTED:      RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE: 
 
Western Water Constructors, Inc.    Tanner Pacific, Inc. 
Project Manager:     Construction Manager: 
 

By:          By:         
 Stephen Welling      Masih Hamkar 
 
Date:          Date:       
 
 
       Union Sanitary District 
       Project Manager: 
 

      By:         
         Derek Chiu 
 
        Date:       
 
 
       Union Sanitary District 
       CIP Coach: 
 

      By:         
         Raymond Chau 
 
        Date:       
 
 
       Union Sanitary District 
       Technical Services Manager: 
 

      By:         
         Sami Ghossain 
 
        Date:       
 
AUTHORIZED STAFF APPROVAL: 
 
The Contractor shall not commence with the above-described work of this change order prior to the approval 
by the District’s Authorized Representative. 
 
Union Sanitary District 
Authorized Representative: 
 
 

By:          Date    
  Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 

93 of 134



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
TITLE: Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with V&A 

Consulting Engineers, Inc. for the Cathodic Protection System Improvements 
Project (This is a motion item) 

 
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 
 Thomas Lam, Associate Engineer 
 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with 
V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. (V&A) in the amount of $30,854 to provide engineering services 
during the construction of the Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project (Project). 
 
Discussion 
 
The purpose of this Task Order is to authorize engineering services during construction, such as 
submittal and shop drawing review, responding to requests for information, and preparation of 
design clarification memoranda. 
 
The scope of services and fees of Task Order No. 2 with V&A are summarized below: 

Task Task Description Amount 
1 Project Management $4,622 

2a Review RFIs $2,022 
2b Review Submittals $8,088 
2c Design Clarification Memoranda $1,116 

94 of 134



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

Task Task Description Amount 
3 Periodic Site visit $1,129 
4 Final System Checkout $7,564 
5 Informal RFIs $6,091 
 Other Direct Costs $222 

Total Not to Exceed Amount $30,854 
 
The task order’s total not-to-exceed amount is 6.4 percent of the construction contract amount 
of $483,800.  For a project of this size and scope, staff expects the fee to be in the range of 4 to 
7 percent.  The task order amount is towards the upper end of the fee range due to the Final 
System Checkout task for which V&A will review the contractor’s test report of the new 
cathodic protection systems and perform independent tests of the systems to verify the results.  
As a comparison, the table below summarizes the final fees and percentages of engineering 
services during construction of past plant and pump station projects. 
 

Project 
Engineering Services 
During Construction 

Cost (A) 

Construction 
Cost (B) 

Percentage 
of A to B 

Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project $81,768 $2,226,332 3.7% 

Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation $35,896 $779,600 4.6% 

Newark Pump Station Wetwell 
Improvements $49,663 $679,100 7.3% 

 
The task order amounts for the Project’s agreement with V&A are summarized in the table 
below: 
 

Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed Amount 
Task Order No. 1 – Final Design Services $86,521 
Task Order No. 2 – Engineering Services 

During Construction $30,854 

Total $117,375 
 
The construction contract for the Project was awarded to Corrpro Companies, Inc. during the 
Board meeting of April 26, 2021.  Staff expects to issue the Notice to Proceed in May 2021 and 
anticipates construction to be completed by December 2021.  Staff plans to hire a consultant to 
provide construction management and inspection services for the Project. 
 

95 of 134



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
Background 
The District operates cathodic protection systems to protect its underground steel and iron 
pipelines and appurtenances from corrosion.  These systems are located at the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (Plant), Newark Pump Station (PS), Irvington PS, and sites where 
the twin force main pipelines and steel casings cross under major roadways and railroads.  The 
cathodic protection systems are a combination of sacrificial anodes installed in shallow 
excavations and anodes installed in a deep well and energized using a rectifier.  The type of 
system is dependent on the quantity and proximity of steel and iron pipelines within an area.  
The cathodic protection systems are designed to sacrificially degrade the anodes and impede 
corrosion of the pipelines. 
 
Staff annually tests and measures the cathodic protection systems to monitor the effectiveness 
of the anodes and rectifiers.  In 2018, the District hired JDH to review the data and evaluate the 
condition of the cathodic protection systems.  JDH presented its findings and recommendations 
in the 2018 Annual Survey and Cathodic Protection Condition Assessment Report (Report).  The 
Report provided a plan to repair, replace, or upgrade the existing cathodic protection systems 
during the next 10 years. 
 
Newark Pump Station 
The cathodic protection system improvements at the Newark PS was one of the 
recommendations in the Report.  The Newark PS system, which consists entirely of sacrificial 
anodes in shallow excavations, was installed in 2004 as part of the Pump Station Force Main 
Corrosion Repairs Project.  JDH found that most of the sacrificial anodes are nearly depleted.  
New anodes were recommended to be installed for corrosion protection of the underground 
steel pipelines which range in diameters between 24-inches and 48-inches.  The cathodic 
protection pipeline test station terminal boards were also recommended to be replaced. 
 
Plant 
One of the Report’s recommendations was to replace seven oil-cooled rectifiers with air-cooled 
rectifiers.  The oil-cooled rectifiers are in poor condition, and they tend to overheat and are 
hard to maintain due to the difficulty in replacing the oil.  The seven oil-cooled rectifiers are 
located near the following structures in the Plant: 

• Headworks Building 
• Primary Clarifiers 1-4 Building 
• West Blower Building 
• Control Box No. 3 
• Alvarado Effluent Pump Station 
• Thickener No. 3 
• Thickener No. 4 

The Report also recommended replacing the deep anode well located at the Heating and 
Mixing Building No. 3 because the anodes are nearly depleted.  A new deep anode well will be 

96 of 134



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 4 

installed, and the existing deep anode well will be “destroyed” pursuant to the California Well 
Standards issued by the California Department of Water Resources.  Additionally, the Report 
also recommended an inactive deep anode well located at the West Blower Building be 
“destroyed” as it was replaced with a new deep anode well several years ago.  Please refer to 
Figure 2 for the location of the improvements at the Plant. 

Project Scope 
JDH provided design services for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic Protection System Project 
when it was previously bid.  V&A Consulting Engineers completed the design of improvements 
to the Plant’s cathodic protection system.  The Project’s scope includes: 

• Plant
o Replacement of seven existing oil-cooled rectifiers with air-cooled rectifiers

located throughout the Plant.
o Installation of one new 250-foot-deep anode well located east of the Heating

and Mixing Building No. 3.
o Destruction of two existing deep anode wells located near the Heating and

Mixing Building No. 3 and the West Blower Building pursuant to the California
Well Standards issued by the California Department of Water Resources.

• Newark PS
o Installation of new buried (shallow depth) sacrificial anodes at 10 locations to

protect the underground steel pipelines which range in diameters from 24 to 48
inches.

o Replacement of 10 existing cathodic protection test station terminal boards.

Previous Board Action 
April 22, 2019, the Board rejected all bids received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic 
Protection System Upgrade Project and authorized staff to re-bid the project. 

June 24, 2019, the Board rejected the sole bid received for the Newark Pump Station Cathodic 
Protection System Upgrade Project. 

November 9, 2020, the Board rejected all bids received for the Cathodic Protection System 
Improvements Project and authorized staff to re-bid the project. 

April 26, 2021, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Cathodic Protection System 
Improvements Project to Corrpro Companies, Inc. in the amount of $483,800. 

PRE/SEG/RC/TL;mb 

Attachment: Task Order No. 2 

97 of 134



Page 1 of 6 
 

Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 

to 

AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

AND 

V&A CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. 

FOR  

ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Dated September 23, 2020 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Task Order No. 2 is to provide engineering services during 
construction for the Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project, Project 
Number 800-503 (Project). 
 
Engineering services to be provided during construction include project 
management, submittal reviews, RFI reviews, clarification memo preparation, site 
visits, cathodic protection system verification testing, engineering support, and 
participation in conference calls. These services are to be performed by the same 
engineers who work on the design and possess detailed knowledge about the 
Project.  

 
2. PROJECT COORDINATION 
 

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s Project 
Manager, Thomas Lam. 
 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost data 
presented in Exhibit A. V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. (Engineer) shall provide 
the following engineering support services during the construction of the project: 

98 of 134



Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 2 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

General Scope Assumptions 
 

• Although the Scope of Work is broken down into tasks, the fee estimate for 
each individual task shall not be considered a “not to exceed” amount for 
each task. It is anticipated that some tasks may require more effort, and 
some may require less effort.  The Engineer shall have the ability to adjust 
the budgets within the Scope of Work among tasks to balance the overall 
level of effort.  The Engineer shall not exceed the total budget for the project 
without written authorization from the District. 

 
 

Task 1 – Project Management:  
The objective of this task is to track and execute the project in accordance with 
the schedule, budget, and quality expectations that are established. This task 
includes the following project management work activities: 

a. Monitor project progress, including work completed, work remaining, 
budget expended, schedule, estimated cost of work remaining, and 
estimated cost at completion; manage activities within total project budget. 

b. Monitor project activities for potential changes and anticipate changes 
whenever possible; with approval, modify project tasks, task budgets, and 
approach to keep the overall project within budget and on schedule. 

c. Manage the quality of all work activities and project deliverables. 

d. Prepare and submit monthly invoices and progress reports.  

Engineer’s budget allowance for this task is 24 hours. 

Task 2 – Submittal, RFI, and Clarification Memoranda: 
a. Requests for Information (RFI): 

Engineer shall respond to formal requests for information (RFIs) when 
requested by the District. Engineer shall provide a written response on the 
Engineer’s response sheet and return the response sheet to the Construction 
Manager. Engineer shall complete review of RFI, provide response, and return 
response within seven (7) calendar days of Engineer’s receipt of RFI. If for 
any reason the response cannot be completed within this period, Engineer 
shall notify Construction Manager and provide reason for delay prior to the 
end of the specified review period. 

The District’s Construction Manager will perform an initial review to screen all 
RFIs for form, completeness, and general content conforming to that specified 
in the Contract Documents before transmitting them to Engineer.  

  

99 of 134



Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 2 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Up to 12 hours to review and respond 4 RFIs at an average of 3 hours per 
RFI, which could include issuing necessary clarifications, interpretations, and 
re-design of the Contract Documents, as appropriate for the orderly 
completion of the work.  

b. Submittal Review: 

Engineer shall respond to requests for submittal review when requested by 
the District. Engineer shall provide written review comments on the Engineer’s 
review comment sheet and return the review comment sheet to the 
Construction Manager. Engineer shall complete review of submittal, provide 
comments, and return review comment sheet within twenty-one (21) calendar 
days of Engineer’s receipt of submittal for normal submittals. Review 
comments for critical path or expedited submittals shall be returned within ten 
(10) calendar days of Engineer’s receipt of submittal. If for any reason the 
review cannot be completed within this period, Engineer shall notify 
Construction Manager and provide reason for delay prior to the end of the 
specified review period.  

The Construction Manager will make an initial review to screen all submittals 
for form, completeness, and general content conforming to that specified in 
the Contract Documents before transmitting them to Engineer.  

Engineer’s submittal review is to determine compliance with the Contract 
Documents. Submittal review is not intended as acceptance of the work. The 
review is not intended to relieve the Contractor of his full responsibility for 
performance as required by the Contract Documents.  

All administrative and quality control submittals shall be reviewed by the 
Construction Manager. 

Up to 48 hours to review and respond up to 12 submittals (including 
resubmittals) at an average of 4 hours per submittal, including shop drawings, 
material and equipment data sheets, engineering calculations, and other data 
the Contractor is required to submit per the Contract Documents. 

c. Clarification Memorandum:  

Clarification Memorandum will be issued to 1) clarify Contract Documents 
when necessary, 2) in the event that modifications to the Contract Documents 
are desired by the District, or 3) to assist the Construction Manager with the 
preparation of contract change order requests.  

Up to 6 hours on preparing 1 Clarification Memoranda at an average of 6 hours 
per Clarification Memorandum.  

100 of 134



Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 2 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Task 3 – Periodic Site Visits: 
a. Provide up to 6 hours to coordinate and conduct up to 1 site visit for 

observational purposes during construction. Days of critical construction will 
be identified using the project schedule and close coordination with the 
Contractor. 

 
Task 4 – Final System Checkout: 
a. The contractor will energize the Cathodic Protection (CP) system and provide 

testing of the completed system at all rectifiers and junction boxes that were 
a part of the project scope. Engineer shall review the report and prepare 
comments in response. 

b. After the Contractor’s final system checkout is complete, Engineer shall 
perform field testing to verify the results of the Contractor’s testing. A potential 
survey will not be conducted. Any deficiencies of the system determined by 
the Engineer shall be repaired and retested by the Contractor at no additional 
cost to the District. It is assumed the Contractor shall provide Engineer with at 
least one week of notice to coordinate the testing. Engineer shall provide a 
letter report documenting the results of the testing. Engineer’s scope includes 
the following testing:  

1) Measure the rectifier and anode outputs at Rectifiers A, B, C, D, E, F, 
G, and R4. Rectifiers A, B, D, E, F, G, and R4 will have new air-cooled 
rectifiers installed. Additionally, Rectifier E will have a newly abandoned 
anode well in addition to an existing unmodified anode well (i.e., only 
one active anode well will remain). Rectifier C will have a new anode 
well. 

2) “On” and “instant off” pipe-to-soil potentials will be measured at the 
structure junction boxes associated with each of the 8 rectifiers to verify 
the rectifier is influencing the intended pipelines; however, synchronized 
current interrupters will not be installed at all 12 rectifiers, so the true 
polarized potential of the pipelines will not be measured.  

 
Task 5 – Informal Requests for Information: 
a. Engineer shall respond to Construction Manager’s informal requests for 

information, including verbal, email, and telephone correspondence with 
Construction Manager. 

b. Provide up to 25 hours of Informal correspondence. 

 

101 of 134



Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 2 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

4. DELIVERABLES 
 

All deliverables shall be provided electronically in Word or PDF format. The 
following deliverables are included in this Task Order: 
 
• Provide responses to submittals, RFIs, and Clarification Memorandum with 

required supporting documentation, as required. 

• Provide a letter response to the Contractor’s final system test report. 

• Provide a letter report for the final system checkout conducted by Engineer. 
 
 
5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 
 

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement. The 
cost ceiling shall be $30,854.  A summary of the anticipated distribution of cost and 
manpower between tasks is included as Exhibit A. 
 
The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed task orders 
under the Agreement: 
 

Task Order / 
Amendment 

Not to Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 

District Staff 
Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – 
Final Design 

$86,521 No Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 2 – 
Engineering Services 
During Construction 

$30,854 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Total $117,375   

 
 
6. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 

The work defined in this Task Order No. 2 shall be completed within 300 calendar 
days after the execution of this Task Order and is subject to the conditions of Article 
3 of this Agreement.  
 
 

102 of 134



Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 2 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

7. KEY PERSONNEL 
 

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 2 are as follows: 
 

Role Key Person to be Assigned 
Principal in Charge Glenn Willson 
Project Manager Chelsea Teall 

 
Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of the 
Agreement. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order 
No. 2 as of __________           _ and therewith incorporate it as part of the Agreement. 
 
 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 
Union Sanitary District V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc.  
 
 
 
By: ________________________ By:    
 Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. Glenn H. Willson, P.E. 
 General Manager/District Engineer Western Regional Manager 
 
 
Date:   Date: ______________________ 

103 of 134



4/29/2021

Task Description
Principal-in-

Charge

Senior Project 

Manager

Project 

Manager

Associate 

Engineer

Assistant 

Engineer

Engineering 

Assistant 
Project Admin Hours Cost

1 Project Management 2 12 6 4 24 $4,622

2a RFI (12 hours for 4 requests) 3 9 12 $2,022

2b Submittal Review (48 hours for 12 submittals) 12 36 48 $8,088

2c Clarification Memoranda (6 hours for 1 memos) 1 1 4 6 $1,116

3 Periodic Site Visits (one 2-hr visit) 1 5 6 $1,129

4 Final System Checkout 2 2 8 24 2 38 $7,564

5 Informal Requests for Information 2 23 25 $6,091

Subtotal Direct Labor Hours 7 2 60 29 49 8 4 159

Hourly $297 $259 $239 $178 $145 $134 $89

Subtotal Direct Labor Cost $2,079 $518 $14,340 $5,162 $7,105 $1,072 $356 $30,632

Other Direct Costs Unit Cost Units No. of Units Cost

Truck (per day) $85 per day 2 $170

Mileage (per mile) $0.575 per mile 90 $52

Office Expenses (Printing/Reproduction) (at 

cost)
$1.00 at cost 0 $0

Subtotal Other Direct Costs $222

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $30,854

PROJECT NAME: Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project, Engineering Services During Construction, Task Order No. 2

JOB NO: 19-0241

CLIENT: Union Sanitary District

Exhibit A

104 of 134



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
TITLE: Board Direction Regarding New Campus Boardroom Following Enhanced 

Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Update Board Workshop (This is a 
Direction Item) 

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager  
 Curtis Bosick, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Assistant PM 

ETSU Steering Committee (Armando Lopez, Sami Ghossain, Robert Simonich) 
  

Recommendation 
 
Staff is seeking feedback and direction regarding the Boardroom based on information provided 
in response to comments received from the Board Members at the ETSU Board workshop held 
on February 9 and the Board meeting of March 8, 2021. 
 
Discussion 
 
On February 9, 2021, the Campus design team and staff held a workshop with the Board to review 
the new Campus Building schematic design package. Some of the general feedback received 
during this workshop related to topics such as: building security; heating, ventilation, and air 
conditioning (HVAC) controls; audio/video requirements; and the proposed ceiling height of the 
new Boardroom.  At the March 8, 2021 meeting, the Board provided additional feedback on the 
individual comments received from Board members in relation to the workshop held on February 
9, 2021. During the March 8, 2021 meeting, the Board provided direction to staff to research the 
potential for the Boardroom ceiling height to be increased beyond the proposed height which 
varies from 11’-8” to 13’.  
 
One concept that was brought up during these aforementioned meetings was the possibility of 
separating the Boardroom from the current building footprint as one possibility to increase the 

105 of 134



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
Boardroom ceiling height as there would not be a second story directly above. The Campus design 
team has provided conceptual sketches (see Figures 1-3) of separating the Boardroom footprint 
to accommodate a higher Boardroom ceiling. Very preliminary estimates for the increased cost 
to the Campus Building project to accommodate a higher ceiling height is in the range of $2.3 to 
$2.9 million dollars. In the event the Board is interested in pursuing this option, staff will need to 
further evaluate the concept to determine the impacts to the current schedule. 
 
Staff has also included some preliminary images to help visualize what was originally presented 
in the schematic design package on February 9, 2021.  These images are meant to provide 
examples of what the Boardroom could look like and have been included as Figures 4-6.  Staff is 
not suggesting these images are at all complete or that these are the only options that the Board 
will have to choose from. Certain elements such as the layout of the dais or the color schemes 
are place holders at this point and time. Staff is planning on discussing this in greater detail at the 
next ETSU Board workshop, which has not been scheduled yet.  For reference, a photo of the 
existing Boardroom including ceiling heights bas been included as Figure 7.   
 
Staff is seeking direction on the footprint of the building and Boardroom and if there is any 
interest in further developing this concept.   
 
Background 
 
The ETSU Program is the culmination of the District’s planning efforts and is based on the 
outcomes and findings of the Plant Solids System/Capacity Assessment – Phases 1 and 2, 
Administration/Control/FMC Buildings Evaluation, the Effluent Management Study and the 
Secondary Treatment Process Improvements evaluation.  The program includes projects 
recommended for implementation that will be phased to address both immediate drivers (poor 
sludge settleability, treatment capacity, effluent disposal and aging infrastructure), while 
preparing for future requirements such as nutrient regulations for discharge in the Bay that are 
currently being considered by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.   
 
The Phase 1 and 2 projects included in this program were presented to the Board during the 
workshop held on May 8, 2019 and are summarized in the Final Report which was approved by 
the Board on August 26, 2019.  A third phase of projects was briefly outlined that covered the 
timeframe from 2040 to 2058 and included potentially stricter nutrient limits in the more distant 
future.  The projects identified in the ETSU Program and modified by the 30% design report to be 
implemented in the near-term (the next seven to ten years) are included in Phase 1 and are 
summarized in the table below. 
 

Phase 1A Aeration Basin 
Modifications 

Retrofitting existing Aeration Basins 1 through 7 and 
construction of an 8th aeration basin with the flexibility 
to operate initially with an anaerobic selector during the 

106 of 134



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 

implementation phase and transitioning to a biological 
nutrient removal (BNR) process following completion. 

Phase 1A 
Campus Building  
(Admin, FMC, Ops) 

Construction of a new combined Campus Building, 
including associated site and utility improvements.  

Phase 1B Secondary Clarifiers 
Construction of four new 160-foot diameter secondary 
clarifiers, mixed liquor control box, and centralized RAS 
pump station.  

Phase 1B Effluent Facilities 
Construction of new chlorination/dechlorination contact 
basins, effluent pump stations, and relocation of 
existing effluent force main. 

Phase 1C Plant Equalization 
Storage 

Retrofitting existing Secondary Clarifiers 1 through 4 to 
operate as primary effluent equalization basins. 

 
The full version of the ETSU Program report, including appendices, can be found at the following 
link: https://unionsanitary.ca.gov/ETSU.   
 
ETSU Phase 1A Project 
Staff developed a Phase 1A Project scope which includes the Aeration Basin Modifications project 
and the Campus Building project. These two projects are being designed together for the initial 
construction because they are the first two concurrent projects that must both be completed 
before the remainder of Phase 1 can be accomplished, specifically the new secondary clarifiers, 
which are necessary for nutrient reduction.   
 
The major scope items for the Aeration Basin Modifications Project are as follows: 

• Retrofit Aeration Basins 1 through 7 to initially operate with an anaerobic selector to 
improve settling and then transition to a Biological Nutrient Removal (BNR) process to 
remove nutrients at the conclusion of Phase 1B.  This work includes but is not limited to 
the following:  

o Installation of baffling and mechanical mixing to create deoxygenation, anoxic and 
flexible aeration zones. 

o Addition of nitrified recycle pumps and dedicated RAS piping for each basin, 
repurposing of existing channels to facilitate step feed operation and surface 
wasting and modifications to existing aeration air distribution and diffuser piping 
systems.   

• Construct new Aeration Basin 8 
• Replace Roof Deck for Aeration Basins 1 through 4.  The existing precast prestressed 

concrete tee-section beams to be replaced with a new cover.   

107 of 134

https://unionsanitary.ca.gov/ETSU


Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 4 
 

• Replace Aeration Blowers 7 through 10 and Channel Blowers 1 through 4 with new high-
speed turbo blowers.  This work includes the replacement/upsizing of existing 480V 
electrical gear and demolition of existing centrifugal blowers and 4160 kV switchgear.   

• Replace Odor Scrubbers 2 through 5.  This work includes the demolition of the existing 
odor scrubber facilities. 

• Rehabilitate Primary Effluent Lift Station No. 2 
• Expand and/or retrofit existing electrical, mechanical, communication, and conveyance 

systems/equipment as required to accomplish the above scope of work. 
 
The major scope items for the Campus Building project are as follows: 

• Construct a new Campus Building that consolidates the District’s existing Administration, 
Control/Lab and Fabrication, and Maintenance and Construction (FMC) buildings and is 
constructed in accordance with current seismic and safety regulations.  This work includes 
all associated site, landscaping and utility improvements, and new parking areas and 
driveways.  

• Potentially construct a new storm water retention pond and covered parking with solar 
panels in portions of the new parking lots to be constructed around the new Campus 
Building. 

• Install electrical and communication/network improvements as required to accomplish 
the above scope of work. 

 
Previous Board Action  
 
December 12, 2016, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Woodard & Curran (formerly RMC Water and Environment) in the amount 
of $265,217 to study, review and assess the District’s near- and long-term projects. 
 
January 9, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $279,698 for the Plant Solids System/Capacity Assessment – 
Phase 2. 
 
March 27, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Woodard & Curran in the amount of $69,877 for the Effluent Management Study. 
 
July 11, 2017, the Board held Workshop No. 1 on the background and analysis of the 
Administration and Control Buildings and cost comparison of the retrofit and new building 
alternatives. 
 
January 22, 2018, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & Curran in the amount of $74,518 to evaluate strategies for 

108 of 134



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 5 
 
early adoption of nutrient removal process at the Plant and at the Hayward Marsh during the 
Effluent Management Study. 
 
March 19, 2018, the Board held Workshop No. 2 on the retrofit vs. new options for the 
Administration and Control Buildings, the options for secondary process improvements, and the 
need to vet the membrane bioreactor treatment technology. 
 
May 8, 2019, the Board held Workshop No. 3 on results from the secondary process evaluation, 
the alternatives and phasing of the secondary treatment process improvements, the new campus 
building alternative, and the capital and O&M cost updates. 
 
July 22,2019, the Board approved the Enhanced Treatment & Site Upgrade Program Manager 
(Limited Duration) and Enhanced Treatment & Site Upgrade Assistant Program Manager (Limited 
Duration) Job Descriptions and Salary Ranges. 
 
August 26, 2019, the Board Adopted Resolution 2864 Approving the District’s Final Report for the 
Enhanced Treatment & Site Upgrade Program. 
 
January 13, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement and Task 
Order No. 1 with Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of $6,752,860 for the Enhanced Treatment 
and Site Upgrade Phase 1A Project to provide the 30% design services for all projects in Phase 1 
of the ETSU Program (excluding the Campus Building project) and final design services associated 
with the Aeration Basin Modifications Project. 
 
March 9, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of $3,737,412 for the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade 
Phase 1A Project to complete the design of the Campus Building Project. 
 
July 13, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Task 
Order No.1 with Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of $98,335 for the Enhanced Treatment and 
Site Upgrade Phase 1A Project to include the Design of Aeration Basin No. 8 in the 30% Design of 
the Aeration Basin Modifications Project. 
 
October 28, 2020, the Board held a Workshop on results from ETSU Phase 1A project design to 
date with emphasis on the review of the 30% Design Submittal for the Phase 1A, 1B, and 1C 
projects. 
 
November 11, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 1 with Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of $750,760 for the Enhanced Treatment 
and Site Upgrade Phase 1A Project to include Aeration Basin No. 8 in the Final Design of the 
Aeration Basin Modifications Project. 
 

109 of 134



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 6 
 
January 11, 2021, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement with 
Hazen and Sawyer for design services for the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Phase 1B 
and 1C Projects and Task Order No. 1 for design of the ETSU Phase 1B Project in the amount of 
$7,960,952. 
 
February 9, 2021, the Board held a Workshop on results from Phase 1A project design to date 
with emphasis on the review of the New Campus Schematic Design Proposal. 
 
February 22, 2021, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement and Task 
Order No. 1 with Psomas for value engineering, constructability review, and construction 
management services for the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1A Project in 
the amount of $10,986,283. 
 
March 8, 2021, the Board directed staff on the individual comments received from Board 
Members regarding the ETSU Board workshop held on February 9, 2021 regarding the new 
Campus Building schematic design package.  
 
Attachments:  
Figure 1 – Conceptual campus floor plan adjustment 
Figure 2 – Conceptual campus elevation view adjustment  
Figure 3 – Conceptual campus section view adjustment 
Figure 4 – Preliminary Boardroom floor plan 
Figure 5 – Preliminary Boardroom south elevation 
Figure 6 – Preliminary Boardroom 3d image 
Figure 7 – Existing Boardroom photo with ceiling heights 
 
   
 

110 of 134



3 4

K K

L L

C C

D D

A A

5 6

8

9 11 13 14 16 17

127

7

G

E
N

T
R

Y

23' - 4" 38' - 6" 40' - 2" 1' - 11" 18' - 0" 30' - 0" 30' - 0" 29' - 9" 34' - 3" 27' - 0" 24' - 0" 30' - 0" 30' - 0" 29' - 3"

10

23' - 0" 30' - 0" 22' - 9"

C.1

1
7

' 
- 

6
"

3
1

' 
- 

0
"

2
5

' -
 1

0
"

1
8

' 
- 

6
"

2
8

' 
- 

8
"

3
1

' 
- 

6
"

1
7

' 
- 

6
"

2
7

' 
- 

0
"

2
2

' 
- 

3
"

7
' 
- 

7
"

1
8

' 
- 

6
"

2
8

' 
- 

8
"

3
1

' 
- 

6
"

WORKROOM
115

DIRTY SHOP
003

COVERED AREA
220

PAINT PREP
362

PAINT SHOP
002

CLEAN SHOP
363

FABRICATION
SHOP

001

TOOL ROOM
136

AIR COMP
ROOM

135

ELEC SHOP
137

SHOP ELEC
ROOM

134

FMC MECH /
ELEC TECH

133

UTILITY
LOCKERS

138

LAB MECH.
ROOM

139

LAB STORAGE
144

MED. CONF. 2
140

MICROBIOLOGY
& MEDIA PREP

142

PREP /
GLASSWASH

ROOM
143

CHEMISTRY
LAB
141

SAMPLE
RECEIVING

145

SHARED LAB
146

INSTRUMENT
ROOM

148

METALS
DIGESTION LAB

147

LAB OFFICE
149

COACH
151

RS ADMIN
152

MED. CONF. 1
106VAULT

124

MAIL/ WORKRM
125

JANITOR
126

MEN'S
RESTROOM

127

WOMENS
RESTROOM

128

MEN'S LOCKER
ROOM

130

WOMEN'S
LOCKER ROOM

132

EM ELEC
121

LG. CONF. 1
119

MAIN ELEC
120

COACH
117

KITCHEN
118

OUTREACH
STOR

122

ELEV
290

ELEV EQUIP
123

PLAN REVIEW
116

LOBBY
101

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

105

CUSTOMER
SERVICE STAFF

114

GEN MGR
112

CLOSED
SESSION ROOM

111

BOARD ROOM
102

FURNITURE
STORAGE

107
IT/AV
108

KITCHEN
110WOMENS PUB.

RR
104

MENS PUB. RR
103

1 2

E E

F

B

H

15

J

7
' 
- 

6
"

D.1 D.1

1.1 1.2

DECK ABOVE

CANOPY ABOVE

DESIGNED BY:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT
MEASURE 1" THEN DRAWING
IS NOT TO FULL SCALE

DATE:

HAZEN NO.:

CONTRACT NO.:

DRAWING 
NUMBER:

PROJECT
ENGINEER:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

1

REV ISSUED FOR DATE BY

HAZEN AND SAWYER
102 MISSION STREET, SUITE 500

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94105

ENHANCED TREATMENT 
SITE AND UPGRADE 

PROGRAM 

PHASE 1A PROJECT

A. BRIGGS

0          1/2"          1"

PRELIMINARY DRAWING DO NOT USE FOR CONSTRUCTION

2020

20118-002

SHEET 
NUMBER:

B
IM

 3
6

0
:/
/U

S
D

 E
T

S
U

/2
0
1

1
8

-0
0
3

-8
0
0

-C
M

P
-A

.r
v
t

4
/2

/2
0

2
1

 1
2

:1
5
:3

4
 P

M

A810.1

Author

Checker

Designer

PLAN
ARCHITECTURE

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

1/16" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

SHEET NOTES:
1. SEE ENLARGED FLOOR 

PLANS FOR REMAINING 
DOOR AND WALL TAGS

2. 

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

N

0 16 32 ft.8

111 of 134

mike
Area Measurement
1,560 sf

mike
Rectangle

mike
Rectangle

mike
Length Measurement
30'-10"

mike
Length Measurement
51'-1"

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 1



LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
14' - 0"

LEVEL ROOF
28' - 0"

3 4 5 6 8 9 11 13 14 16 17127 10

METAL ROOF CANOPY, 
MANUFACTURED, WITH WALL 
SUPPORTS SUNSHADE CANOPY

SUNSHADE + TRANSLUCENT PANEL CANOPY

4' HIGH CMU SITE WALL IN FRONT OF BUILDING 
WALL PANEL

ENTRY CANOPY WITH PV
SUNSHADE CANOPY

FENCING

SOLAR CANOPY

1 2 15

LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
14' - 0"

LEVEL ROOF
28' - 0"

K LC DA GC.1

ENTRY CANOPY WITH PV SUNSHADE CANOPY

FENCING FENCING

E FB H J

LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
14' - 0"

LEVEL ROOF
28' - 0"

3456891113141617 12 710

SUNSHADE + TRANSLUCENT PANEL CANOPY SUNSHADE + TRANSLUCENT PANEL CANOPY

METAL ROOF CANOPY, 
MANUFACTURED, WITH WALL 
SUPPORTS

SOLAR CANOPYFENCING

1215

LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
14' - 0"

LEVEL ROOF
28' - 0"

KL CD AG C.1

SUNSHADE + TRANSLUCENT PANEL CANOPY

FENCINGFENCING

EF BHJ

METAL PANEL - 1

EXTERIOR 
MATERIAL LEGEND

METAL PANEL - 2

ACCENT PANEL

GLAZING

CMU

METAL PANEL - 3

DESIGNED BY:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT
MEASURE 1" THEN DRAWING
IS NOT TO FULL SCALE

DATE:

HAZEN NO.:

CONTRACT NO.:

DRAWING 
NUMBER:

PROJECT
ENGINEER:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

1

REV ISSUED FOR DATE BY

HAZEN AND SAWYER
102 MISSION STREET, SUITE 500

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94105

ENHANCED TREATMENT 
SITE AND UPGRADE 

PROGRAM 

PHASE 1A PROJECT

A. BRIGGS

0          1/2"          1"

PRELIMINARY DRAWING DO NOT USE FOR CONSTRUCTION

2020

20118-002

SHEET 
NUMBER:

B
IM

 3
6

0
:/
/U

S
D

 E
T

S
U

/2
0
1

1
8

-0
0
3

-8
0
0

-C
M

P
-A

.r
v
t

3
/2

2
/2

0
2

1
 1

:5
6
:1

9
 P

M

A820.1

Author

Checker

Designer

ELEVATION
ARCHITECTURE

ELEVATIONS

1/16" = 1'-0"
1

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"
4

EAST ELEVATION

A810.1 1/16" = 1'-0"

2 NORTH ELEVATION

A810.1 1/16" = 1'-0"

3 WEST ELEVATION

112 of 134

mike
Rectangle

mike
Rectangle

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 2



LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
14' - 0"

LEVEL ROOF
28' - 0"

K LC DA GC.1 E FB H JD.1

DESIGNED BY:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT
MEASURE 1" THEN DRAWING
IS NOT TO FULL SCALE

DATE:

HAZEN NO.:

CONTRACT NO.:

DRAWING 
NUMBER:

PROJECT
ENGINEER:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

1

REV ISSUED FOR DATE BY

HAZEN AND SAWYER
102 MISSION STREET, SUITE 500

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94105

ENHANCED TREATMENT 
SITE AND UPGRADE 

PROGRAM 

PHASE 1A PROJECT

A. BRIGGS

0          1/2"          1"

PRELIMINARY DRAWING DO NOT USE FOR CONSTRUCTION

2020

20118-002

SHEET 
NUMBER:

B
IM

 3
6

0
:/
/U

S
D

 E
T

S
U

/2
0
1

1
8

-0
0
3

-8
0
0

-C
M

P
-A

.r
v
t

4
/8

/2
0

2
1
 6

:2
1

:2
1

 P
M

A836.4

Author

Checker

Designer

Unnamed

A830 1/8" = 1'-0"

1 BUILDING SECTION - 5

113 of 134

mike
Rectangle

mike
Length Measurement
30'-10"

mike
Rectangle

mike
Rectangle

mike
Rectangle

mike
Rectangle

mike
Length Measurement
14'-0"

mike
Rectangle

mike
Line

mike
Line

mike
Length Measurement
17'-0"

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 3



Plan

3/22/21
Board Room Studies114 of 134

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 4



South Elevation

3/22/21
Board Room Studies115 of 134

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 5



Coffered Ceiling

3/22/21
Board Room Studies

+9’-0” AT 
B.O. SOFFIT

+13’-0” AT 
B.O. CEILING

+11’8” AT 
B.O. BEAM

116 of 134

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 6



16' 7"

11'

9' 7" 

117 of 134

calebm
Line

calebm
Line

calebm
Line

calebm
Line

ricp
Text Box
FIGURE 7



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
TITLE: Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries 

(This is an Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach 

Alex Paredes, Pretreatment Coordinator 
  
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
Discussion 
The Certificates of Merit award is an annual event that is held to recognize industries that have 
exceeded the requirements of their wastewater discharge permits during the prior calendar 
year and that have demonstrated their continued commitment to protecting the environment.  
In addition, the certificates recognize the industries for consistently complying with and 
implementing pollution prevention measures, maintaining a cooperative relationship with the 
District, and demonstrating continued awareness and understanding of environmental issues 
and requirements.   
 
This year, the District is awarding Certificates of Merit to twenty-six (26) out of thirty-five (35), 
or 74% of the Significant Industrial Users (SIUs) with Class I Wastewater Discharge Permits.  
District staff commends these twenty-six SIU’s for their excellent performance during 2020.  
 
In accordance with the current District COVID-19 Prevention Program, the framed Certificates 
of Merit will be mailed to the recipients along with an acknowledgement letter and an email 
announcement of their achievement. In addition, staff will mail letters to the mayors of 
Fremont, Newark and Union City recognizing the facilities in their cities and place an 

118 of 134



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 
advertisement in the May 11th issue of the Tri-City Voice and May 14th issue of the Argus 
congratulating the awardees. 
 
Companies receiving the Certificates of Merit are: 
 
City of Fremont (23 of 29 SIU’s) 
Air Liquide Advanced Materials (2nd consecutive year) 
Amphenol NovaSensor (7th consecutive year) 
Applied Thin-Film Products (15th consecutive year) 
Bay Area Circuits, Inc. (2nd consecutive year) 
Compugraphics, Inc. (7th consecutive year) 
Confluent Medical Technologies, Inc. 
Enablence USA Components, Inc. (12th consecutive year) 
Finisar Corporation (18th consecutive year) 
Global Plating, Inc. (6th consecutive year) 
Intematix Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Lam Research Corporation (CA03/CA3E) (10th consecutive year) 
Microwave Technology, Inc. (10th consecutive year) 
NeoPhotonics Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Quality Transport, Inc./Truck-Rail Handling, Inc. (11th consecutive year) 
Quantum Clean #2 (14th consecutive year) 
Raxium, Inc. 
Sanmina Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Seagate Technology, LLC (3rd consecutive year) 
SLD Laser Diode, Inc. (9th consecutive year) 
Tri-Cities Recycling and Disposal Facility (16th consecutive year) 
Washington Hospital Healthcare System (8th consecutive year) 
Western Digital Technologies B1 (4th consecutive year) 
Western Digital Technologies B2 (3rd consecutive year) 
 
City of Newark (2 of 4 SIU’s) 
Britech Electropolishing, Inc. 
Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc. (11th consecutive year) 
 
City of Union City (1 of 2 SIU’s) 
Electrochem Solutions, Inc. (5th consecutive year) 
 
Background 
None. 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 

119 of 134



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
 
PRE/SEG/MD/AP:dp 
 
Attachment: Advertisement: Certificate of Merit 
 
 

120 of 134



Union City

Fremont

Union Sanitary District congratulates
the following industries. They have received USD’s

2020 Certificate of Merit
for 100% compliance with water quality requirements

Protecting The Tri-Cities & San Francisco Bay

Air Liquide Advanced Materials (2)
Amphenol NovaSensor (7) 
Applied Thin-Film Products (15)
Bay Area Circuits, Inc.  (7)
Compugraphics, Inc. 
Confluent Medical Technologies, Inc. 
Enablence USA Components, Inc.  (12)
Finisar Corporation  (18)
Global Plating, Inc.  (6)
Intematix Corporation  (2)
Lam Research Corporation (CA03/CA3E)  (10)
Microwave Technology, Inc.  (10)

Newark

Manny Fernandez     Tom Handley     Pat Kite     Anjali Lathi Jennifer Toy

Britech Electropolishing, Inc.
Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc.  (11)

You’re helping to keep San Francisco Bay clean!

Board of Directors

Electrochem Solutions, Inc.  (5)

(Consecutive years receiving award)

NeoPhotonics Corporation  (2)
Quality Transport, Inc./Truck-Rail
Handling, Inc.  (11)
Quantum Clean #2  (14)
Raxium, Inc.
Sanmina Corporation  (2)
Seagate Technology, LLC  (3)
SLD Laser Diode, Inc.  (9)
Tri-Cities Recycling and Disposal Facility  (16)
Washington Hospital Healthcare System  (8)
Western Digital Technologies B1  (4)
Western Digital Technologies B2  (3)

121 of 134



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 
TITLE:  COVID‐19 Update (This is an Information Item) 
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
     
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
 
Discussion 
None. 
 
 
Background 
General  Manager  Eldredge  will  provide  an  update  on  the  District’s  COVID‐19  response  and 
staffing levels. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 
 

122 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 7210161177408 $1,239,574.25 $1,239,574.25OVERAA4/29/2021 143

O&M ASSESSMENT, APR-JUN 20213246177320 $304,801.49 $304,801.49EAST BAY DISCHARGERS AUTHORITY4/22/2021 110

CHERRY ST. PS197607177385 $13,776.69 $259,875.92CAROLLO ENGINEERS4/29/2021 143

WAS THICKENERS197207 $117,791.124/29/2021 143

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 7197234 $100,738.104/29/2021 143

AERATION BLOWER 11 (HIGH SPEED)197339 $5,745.654/29/2021 143

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS197284 $21,824.364/29/2021 143

2806 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE102505177363 $12,318.34 $70,099.52USP TECHNOLOGIES4/22/2021 110

4456 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE102279 $19,561.844/22/2021 110

4346 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE102582 $19,078.944/22/2021 110

4360 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE102581 $19,140.404/22/2021 110

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 7 - ESCROW PYMT210161E177409 $65,240.75 $65,240.75OVERAA4/29/2021 143

SERV TO 04/04/21 IRVINGTON PS140120210412177410 $62,559.89 $62,559.89PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC4/29/2021 170

REFUND # 365329787177342 $60,000.00 $60,000.00OVERTON MOORE PROPERTIES4/22/2021

IRVINGTON BASIN MASTER PLAN UPDATE187617177429 $58,731.75 $58,731.75WOODARD & CURRAN INC4/29/2021 143

45,600 LBS CLARIFLOC C-62671532847177413 $50,761.66 $50,761.66POLYDYNE INC4/29/2021 110

EMPLOYMENT LEGAL - FEB 2021267073177380 $45,114.84 $45,114.84BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP4/29/2021 150

Page 1 of 12123 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV TO 03/31/2021 PASEO PADRE PS666720210407177345 $370.83 $45,049.46PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC4/22/2021 170

SERV TO 03/31/21 HAYWARD MARSH892820210407 $61.454/22/2021 110

SERV TO 03/22/2021 PLANT170120210412 $41,231.224/22/2021 110

SERV TO 03/31/21 FREMONT PS898220210407 $195.414/22/2021 170

SERV TO 04/05/20 BOYCE RD PS013720210412 $3,190.554/22/2021 170

48,000 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017708253177399 $6,987.21 $28,301.85KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC4/29/2021 110

46,820 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017707444 $7,417.874/29/2021 110

48,400 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017707423 $7,018.874/29/2021 110

47,820 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017707737 $6,877.904/29/2021 110

7,865 GALS UNLEADED 10% ETHANOL GAS55512177364 $24,625.97 $24,625.97VALLEY OIL COMPANY4/22/2021 122

6,008 GALS UNDYED CARB ULTRA LOW DIESEL817227177369 $19,339.42 $19,339.42WESTERN STATES OIL CO4/22/2021 122

1 HYDRAULIC PRESS - 165 TON156353177378 $18,736.30 $18,736.30BAILEIGH INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS4/29/2021 170

240 GAL SANAFOAM VAPOROOTER47380177366 $17,618.11 $17,618.11WECO INDUSTRIES LLC4/22/2021 121

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 2 REHABILITATION800526.9177400 $16,999.30 $16,999.30KIEWIT INFRASTRUCTURE WEST CO4/29/2021 143

SERV: FEB 2021 PLANT1420415177318 $16,334.60 $16,334.60DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES4/22/2021 110

47,260 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017706109177332 $7,626.43 $15,461.44KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC4/22/2021 110

48,560 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017707422 $7,835.014/22/2021 110

Page 2 of 12124 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

CIP - FEB 2021266921177312 $2,562.56 $12,879.36BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP4/22/2021

GENERAL LEGAL - FEB 2021266920 $7,055.364/22/2021 150

ETSU - FEB 2021266923 $3,261.444/22/2021 150

10 PIPE PATCH KITS WINTER69621177300 $7,067.63 $11,446.663T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC4/22/2021

10 PIPE PATCH KITS WINTER69618 $4,379.034/22/2021

4849.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49070996177425 $3,503.46 $10,580.02UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC4/29/2021 110

4897.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49065493 $3,537.564/29/2021 110

4899.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49073915 $3,539.004/29/2021 110

SERVICE: DIGESTER LINE STOP321120177356 $9,398.00 $9,398.00TAP MASTER INC4/22/2021 170

1 SUMP PUMP REPLACEMENT128209177353 $7,684.70 $7,684.70SHAPE INCORPORATED4/22/2021 170

4900 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49053167177361 $3,539.65 $7,007.06UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC4/22/2021 110

4800 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49057571 $3,467.414/22/2021 110

4 ROSEMOUNT TEMPERTURE TRANSMITTERS2002918177398 $6,465.34 $6,465.34JENSEN INSTRUMENT COMPANY4/29/2021 170

2 COGEN REFURBISHED INTERCOOLERS4230055177368 $6,056.25 $6,056.25WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS4/22/2021 170

2021 HEARING AND RESPIRATOR TESTS319874177322 $5,900.00 $5,900.00EXAMINETICS4/22/2021 132

CENTRIFUGE BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS2000479519177303 $5,798.26 $5,798.26AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC4/22/2021 143

42,120 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391530589177347 $5,741.35 $5,741.35POLYDYNE INC4/22/2021 110

SALES & USE TAX 01/01/21 - 03/31/202120210422177381 $5,355.46 $5,355.46STATE OF CALIFORNIA4/29/2021

REFUND # 365679068177377 $5,000.00 $5,000.00ASSOCIATED PLUMBING, INC4/29/2021

Page 3 of 12125 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9841550677177328 $1,218.84 $4,082.23GRAINGER INC4/22/2021

4 PLUGS9837458653 $332.804/22/2021 170

1 SOLENOID9839658748 $176.334/22/2021 170

1 LAMP9836361049 $64.224/22/2021 170

77 BOXES DISPOSABLE GLOVES9838555390 $2,236.084/22/2021

1 CRIMPER9830166303 $53.964/22/2021 172

6 5-GAL ODOR NEUTRALIZERS105680177412 $4,025.68 $4,025.68PIIAN SYSTEMS LLC4/29/2021 110

PORTFOLIO ACCOUNTING & REPORTING ANNUAL505602177359 $3,900.00 $3,900.00TRACKER, A DIV OF C2, LLC4/22/2021 130

GRIT HAULING 03/24 & 03/26/202121033113177417 $1,992.13 $3,589.43S&S TRUCKING4/29/2021 110

GRIT HAULING 04/02/202121040727 $916.734/29/2021 110

GRIT HAULING 03/29/202121040818 $680.574/29/2021 110

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103239177336 $264.00 $3,515.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL4/22/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103C98 $220.004/22/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103746 $3,031.004/22/2021 113

SOLAR PANEL CLEANING3633177428 $3,360.00 $3,360.00WELCOME BUILDING MAINTENANCE4/29/2021 170

REFUND # 365247249177352 $3,300.00 $3,300.00SANCO PIPELINES INC4/22/2021

REFUND # 3652514775177370 $3,300.00 $3,300.00WOLFENDEN CONSTRUCTION INC4/22/2021

GEOEXPRESS SWM RENEWAL60016177393 $3,215.00 $3,215.00EXTENSIS4/29/2021 173

PURIFIED WATER FEASIBILITY EVALUATION15158177305 $3,172.14 $3,172.14ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT4/22/2021 143

Page 4 of 12126 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

REFUND # 365339787177344 $2,500.00 $2,500.00PACIFIC COMMONS OWNER LP4/22/2021

REFUND # 3655727140177406 $2,500.00 $2,500.00MLC HOLDINGS INC4/29/2021

REFUND # 3654924037177421 $2,500.00 $2,500.00T.M. SHANAHAN ENGINEERING4/29/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57015624177404 $131.31 $2,303.35MCMASTER SUPPLY INC4/29/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57031219 $764.504/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57115075 $98.344/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57012751 $113.184/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57266677 $41.524/29/2021 171

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57266629 $513.014/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57269254 $641.494/29/2021 170

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - APR 2021DMKH291177330 $1,346.26 $2,203.45IRON MOUNTAIN4/22/2021 141

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - MAR 2021202318277 $318.674/22/2021 173

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - APR 2021DLVG171 $538.524/22/2021 141

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3P8802177396 $2,195.27 $2,195.27HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS4/29/2021 111

1 MOTOR944635177331 $2,049.47 $2,154.87KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES4/22/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS695004 $105.404/22/2021 170

TEMP LABOR-PERRY, R. WK END 04/04/202126472273177411 $1,676.40 $2,011.68PEOPLEREADY INC4/29/2021 120

TEMP LABOR-PERRY, R. 03/26/202126478218 $335.284/29/2021 120

FIBER INTERNET BACKUP - APR 2021120282491177314 $2,010.36 $2,010.36COLORADO WASHINGTON INC COMCAST OF CALIFORNIA,4/22/2021

Page 5 of 12127 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

03/01/21 - 03/31/21 GUARD AT DISTRICT14481177307 $1,932.00 $1,932.00AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY4/22/2021 120

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM222125177340 $1,759.51 $1,759.51NAYLOR STEEL INC4/22/2021 122

REACH RENTAL 03/22/2021 - 03/26/202195751908177329 $1,724.15 $1,724.15H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES INC4/22/2021 170

EMERGENCY OUTFALL OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS21660493177301 $1,668.91 $1,668.91ABC IMAGING, INC4/22/2021 143

2 LIFTING CABLES12050651177387 $1,627.15 $1,627.15CH BULL COMPANY4/29/2021 170

MARCH PEST CONTROL406470725177358 $1,054.00 $1,426.00TERMINIX COMMERCIAL4/22/2021 170

PEST CONTROL406466148 $240.004/22/2021 170

PEST CONTROL406470724 $132.004/22/2021 170

TEMP LABOR-PERRY, R. WK END 03/28/202126458767177346 $1,394.56 $1,394.56PEOPLEREADY INC4/22/2021 120

1 CY ARGON9111419903177304 $302.61 $1,239.83AIRGAS NCN4/22/2021 170

CYLINDER RENTAL9978864363 $937.224/22/2021 170

LAB SUPPLIES8804288903177427 $104.80 $1,233.09VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC4/29/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804351290 $113.144/29/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804317621 $165.764/29/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804378593 $57.424/29/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804250570 $642.724/29/2021

LAB SUPPLIES8804306058 $149.254/29/2021 113

REPAIRED RIVET BUSTER72074177371 $243.95 $1,213.25AIR & TOOL ENGINEERING COMPANY4/29/2021 123

2 PISTOL GRIP CHIPPERS72076 $969.304/29/2021 123

Page 6 of 12128 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL20210328177315 $1,136.60 $1,136.60COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC4/22/2021 170

ASTD COGEN PARTS6537177321 $1,130.37 $1,130.37ENERGY CHOICE INC4/22/2021

ASTD CLAY FITTINGS801001177405 $1,109.05 $1,109.05MISSION CLAY PRODUCTS LLC4/29/2021 123

ETSU TEMPORARY OFFICE SPACE2135872177407 $1,071.05 $1,071.05MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP4/29/2021 114

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS56441684177337 $440.29 $1,034.02MCMASTER SUPPLY INC4/22/2021 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS56613264 $574.694/22/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS56455668 $19.044/22/2021 170

REFUND # 3652726081177310 $500.00 $1,000.00BAYSHORE PLUMBERS4/22/2021

REFUND # 3652626082 $500.004/22/2021

60 PR GLOVES5069579177401 $215.37 $950.70MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC4/29/2021

ASTD CAL GAS5064591 $735.334/29/2021

ALS VOC SAMPLE EQUIPMENT AND ANALYSIS36545404870177306 $940.00 $940.00ALS ENVIRONMENTAL4/22/2021 143

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21835255177384 $852.65 $852.65CARBOLINE COMPANY4/29/2021 170

REFUND # 3655427114177423 $500.00 $850.00THE PLUMBING MINISTRY4/29/2021

REFUND # 3655327114.1 $350.004/29/2021

REFUND # 365669068177402 $800.00 $800.00MANCHESTER HOTELS4/29/2021

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES7902672200177416 $624.96 $796.65RS HUGHES CO INC4/29/2021

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES7902672201 $171.694/29/2021

WATER SERVICE 03/07/21 - 04/06/2101D0036018380177349 $777.00 $777.00NESTLE WATERS NO. AMERICA READYREFRESH4/22/2021 120

Page 7 of 12129 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9847636546177395 $23.45 $746.06GRAINGER INC4/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9843944902 $113.114/29/2021 170

20 PACKS DISPOSABLE GLOVES9845441550 $320.044/29/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9845670414 $41.224/29/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9847420735 $137.954/29/2021 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9843944894 $63.984/29/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9842750433 $46.314/29/2021 170

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE248947177415 $711.47 $711.47ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION4/29/2021 170

AD: PUBLIC NOTICE3452141177391 $187.20 $706.88DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION4/29/2021 144

AD: EMERGENCY OUTFALL OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS3454941 $519.684/29/2021 143

NON-RESIDENTIAL DATABASE DATA EXTRACTION7177343 $675.00 $675.00AYHAN OZCAN4/22/2021 173

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102517486177308 $259.00 $671.46ARAMARK4/22/2021

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102517502 $365.144/22/2021

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY1102517543 $47.324/22/2021 136

DI WATER SYSTEM904864219177392 $289.42 $671.02EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES4/29/2021 170

DI WATER SYSTEM904859060 $381.604/29/2021 170

Page 8 of 12130 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104238177403 $102.00 $657.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL4/29/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104152 $222.004/29/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103H85 $74.004/29/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103E80 $259.004/29/2021 113

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102521026177376 $264.00 $636.39ARAMARK4/29/2021

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102521062 $372.394/29/2021

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE4035786722177383 $307.08 $621.48CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC4/29/2021 173

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE4035787824 $314.404/29/2021 173

3 TIRES1841094025177327 $605.23 $605.23GOODYEAR COMM TIRE & SERV CTRS4/22/2021 122

RADIO SERVICE - APR 2021210454177338 $599.08 $599.08METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC4/22/2021 170

SAMPLING SUPPLIES20457503177357 $571.80 $571.80TELEDYNE ISCO INC4/22/2021

2 CY ARGON9111835736177372 $507.77 $507.77AIRGAS NCN4/29/2021 170

REFUND # 3654527107177302 $500.00 $500.00ADVANCED REPIPE SPECIALIST INC4/22/2021

REFUND # 3653723005177317 $500.00 $500.00CVE DEMOLITION INC4/22/2021

REFUND # 365449095177350 $500.00 $500.00ROBSON HOMES LLC4/22/2021

METROSCAN ONLINE SERVICE82075665177316 $339.90 $339.90CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTION4/22/2021 173

EXP REIMB: MICROSOFT CERTIFICATION EXAM20210422177422 $330.00 $330.00RUFUS TAI4/29/2021 173

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24109028177339 $187.46 $328.36MOTION INDUSTRIES INC4/22/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24108852 $140.904/22/2021

Page 9 of 12131 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

MARCH 2021 SERVICE FEE165652177348 $318.57 $318.57PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC4/22/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS458155177309 $302.12 $302.12AUTO BODY TOOLMART4/22/2021 170

LAB SUPPLIES8804245574177365 $67.69 $300.36VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC4/22/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804197599 $41.984/22/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804261577 $50.594/22/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804254464 $78.574/22/2021 113

LAB SUPPLIES8804288902 $61.534/22/2021 113

GRADE III OPERATOR CERTIFICATE RENEWAL - P. BORBECK20210419177355 $150.00 $300.00SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES4/22/2021 111

OPERATOR CERT RNWL: A. LOPEZ - GRADE V20210415 $150.004/22/2021 110

EXP REIMB: SAFETY SHOES20210419.1177333 $192.01 $269.08JUSTIN LAURENCE4/22/2021 111

EXP REIMB: TPO SAFETY RECOGNITION 2ND QTR20210419 $77.074/22/2021 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS39438177374 $267.18 $267.18ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP4/29/2021 170

WEF MEMBERSHIP A LOPEZ20210415177367 $267.00 $267.00WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FED4/22/2021 110

120 FILTERS24715841177424 $263.40 $263.40TRI DIM FILTER CORPORATION4/29/2021

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 03/27/2198XW53131177362 $180.90 $180.90UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE4/22/2021 136

APRIL 2021 PAGER SERVICE20210331177419 $173.69 $173.69SPOK INC4/29/2021 141

8 CS COMPOSTABLE UTENSILS301762177420 $157.21 $157.21STARLINE SUPPLY COMPANY4/29/2021

Page 10 of 12132 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16023320177379 $24.99 $153.98BLAISDELL'S4/29/2021 141

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16029840 $43.794/29/2021 130

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16023000 $85.204/29/2021 141

MONTHLY CYLINDER RENTAL - MAR 2021771003144177335 $134.92 $134.92MATHESON TRI-GAS INC4/22/2021 170

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - MONTHLY CHARGE MONITORING AGREEMENT142819177360 $133.33 $133.33TRI-SIGNAL INTEGRATION INC4/22/2021 122

1.84 FILL SAND31743177390 $131.70 $131.70CLARK'S HOME AND GARDEN INC4/29/2021 123

IRIDIUM SVC FEE MAY 2021112131177414 $112.00 $112.00REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L4/29/2021

EXP REIMB: TPO SAFETY RECOGNITION 1ST, 2ND & 3RD QTR20210416177326 $103.19 $103.19BRUCE GALLEGO JR.4/22/2021 111

FEATURED JOB POSTING1111462177313 $100.00 $100.00CAREERS IN GOVERNMENT INC4/22/2021 132

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16021860177311 $32.91 $89.29BLAISDELL'S4/22/2021 110

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16018010 $56.384/22/2021 120

2 SELF INKING STAMPS169723177394 $82.69 $82.69FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC4/29/2021 110

ASTD LUMBER SUPPLIES553751177397 $67.58 $67.58HULBERT LUMBER SUPPLY4/29/2021 122

2 NEW HIRE FINGERPRINTS503941177382 $64.00 $64.00STATE OF CALIFORNIA4/29/2021 132

SERV TO: 04/02/21 - PASEO PADRE4047286120210406177373 $61.21 $61.21ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT4/29/2021 170

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE FOR CALL OUT20210415177354 $60.37 $60.37THOMAS SOLARI4/22/2021 172

EXP REIMB: TPO 3RD QTR SAFETY RECOGITION20210419177324 $59.92 $59.92MICHAEL FULKERSON4/22/2021 111

EXP REIMB: CALL OUT MILEAGE20210415177341 $55.70 $55.70STEVEN NOEGEL4/22/2021 171

EXP REIMB: CLASS A LICENSE FEE20210415177319 $50.13 $50.13ART DIOSDADO4/22/2021 120

Page 11 of 12133 of 134



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

04/17/2021-04/30/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

EXP REIMB: CWEA COLLECTIONS TRAINING20210416177334 $50.00 $50.00ANTHONY MARTINEZ4/22/2021 121

EXP REIMB: CWEA COLLECTIONS TRAINING20210415177351 $50.00 $50.00WALKER ROLLINS4/22/2021 121

SHIPPING SERVICE - GRAVITY SEWER REHAB/REPLACEMENT732623759177323 $45.25 $45.25FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION4/22/2021 143

ASTD KEYS & TAGS321238177386 $32.93 $32.93CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH4/29/2021 122

EXP REIMB: CALL OUT MILEAGE20210415177325 $31.36 $31.36CHRISTOPHER GABRIEL4/22/2021 171

EXP REIMB: ADMIN PROF RECOGNITION - M. BAUTISTA20210427177389 $27.30 $27.30RAYMOND CHAU4/29/2021 143

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE FOR CALL OUT20210421177388 $25.92 $25.92PETE CHAPARRO4/29/2021 170

CENTRIFUGE REBUILD KIT8480104250177375 $25.47 $25.47ANDRITZ SEPARATION INC4/29/2021 170

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/03/2198XW53141177426 $12.52 $12.52UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE4/29/2021 136

EXP REIMB: BIRTHDAY RECOGNITION20210426177418 $5.99 $5.99JENNIFER SIO-KWOK4/29/2021 130

 19

 57

 4

 130

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 0

 210 

 1,762,904.96

 602,994.38

 217,147.93

 34,441.87

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 2,617,489.14

 22,412.16

 140,944.42

 649,880.90

 1,804,251.66

 2,617,489.14

 64

 44

 19

 3

 130

Page 12 of 12134 of 134



DESK ITEM  
Item 13 

5/102021 

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 10, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
TITLE:  Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class  I Permitted  Industries 

(This is an Information Item)   
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
  Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach 

Alex Paredes, Pretreatment Coordinator 
   
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
Discussion 
The Certificates of Merit award is an annual event that is held to recognize industries that have 
exceeded  the  requirements of  their wastewater discharge permits during  the prior  calendar 
year and that have demonstrated their continued commitment to protecting the environment.  
In  addition,  the  certificates  recognize  the  industries  for  consistently  complying  with  and 
implementing pollution prevention measures, maintaining a cooperative relationship with the 
District, and demonstrating  continued awareness and understanding of environmental  issues 
and requirements.   
 
This year, the District is awarding Certificates of Merit to twenty‐six (26) out of thirty‐five (35), 
or  74%  of  the  Significant  Industrial Users  (SIUs) with  Class  I Wastewater Discharge  Permits.  
District staff commends these twenty‐six SIU’s for their excellent performance during 2020.  
 
In accordance with the current District COVID‐19 Prevention Program, the framed Certificates 
of Merit will be mailed  to  the recipients along with an acknowledgement  letter and an email 
announcement  of  their  achievement.  In  addition,  staff  will  mail  letters  to  the  mayors  of 
Fremont,  Newark  and  Union  City  recognizing  the  facilities  in  their  cities  and  place  an 



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 2 
 

DESK ITEM 
Item 13 

5/10/2021 

advertisement  in  the  May  11th  issue  of  the  Tri‐City  Voice  and  May  14th  issue  of  the  Argus 
congratulating the awardees. 
 
Companies receiving the Certificates of Merit are: 
 
City of Fremont (23 of 29 SIU’s) 
Air Liquide Advanced Materials (2nd consecutive year) 
Amphenol NovaSensor (7th consecutive year) 
Applied Thin‐Film Products (15th consecutive year) 
Bay Area Circuits, Inc. (7th 2nd consecutive year) 
Compugraphics, Inc. (7th consecutive year) 
Confluent Medical Technologies, Inc. 
Enablence USA Components, Inc. (12th consecutive year) 
Finisar Corporation (18th consecutive year) 
Global Plating, Inc. (6th consecutive year) 
Intematix Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Lam Research Corporation (CA03/CA3E) (10th consecutive year) 
Microwave Technology, Inc. (10th consecutive year) 
NeoPhotonics Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Quality Transport, Inc./Truck‐Rail Handling, Inc. (11th consecutive year) 
Quantum Clean #2 (14th consecutive year) 
Raxium, Inc. 
Sanmina Corporation (2nd consecutive year) 
Seagate Technology, LLC (3rd consecutive year) 
SLD Laser Diode, Inc. (9th consecutive year) 
Tri‐Cities Recycling and Disposal Facility (16th consecutive year) 
Washington Hospital Healthcare System (8th consecutive year) 
Western Digital Technologies B1 (4th consecutive year) 
Western Digital Technologies B2 (3rd consecutive year) 
 
City of Newark (2 of 4 SIU’s) 
Britech Electropolishing, Inc. 
Matheson Tri‐Gas, Inc. (11th consecutive year) 
 
City of Union City (1 of 2 SIU’s) 
Electrochem Solutions, Inc. (5th consecutive year) 
 
Background 
None. 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 

Formatted: Superscript



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of May 10, 2021 
Page 3 
 

DESK ITEM 
Item 13 

5/10/2021 

 
 
PRE/SEG/MD/AP:dp 

 
Attachment: Advertisement: Certificate of Merit 
 
 


	1 05102021_Agenda
	2 05102021 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags
	Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, thi...
	To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk by email ...
	1.    Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Public Comment
	Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Speaker cards will be available a...
	05072021 EIT Cmte Ag.pdf
	Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting wi...
	1.    Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Public Comment
	Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Speaker cards will be available a...


	4 04262021 Minutes
	7 New Policy - Pension and OPEB Policy 2095
	Pension and OPEB Funding Policy 2095
	Pension and OPEB Funding Policy

	8 ETSU MND
	Agenda Item 8 ETSU MND
	Figure 1
	ETSU-CEQA-Program IS MND-Table 1 Comments and Responses_v2
	Responses
	ETSU-NOA
	ETSU-CEQA-Phase 1 Program IS MND-NOD_Apr 29 2021

	ETSU.Resolution_MND v2

	9 EOIP_Final
	10 CCO1Blower11
	3 CCO-001.pdf
	Item: Blower Room Intake Ventilation Modifications


	11 CPSys_ESDC
	2 TO2_VA_Cathodic.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. project coordination
	3. SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4. Deliverables
	5. payment to the engineer
	6. time of completion
	7. key personnel


	12 Boardroom
	ETSU Staff Report - Boardroom Height -v2
	Figures
	USD - BOARD ROOM EXPANSION
	210402 USD - Floor Plan BOARD ROOM EXPANSION
	210408 USD Elevations - BOARD ROOM EXPANSION
	210408 USD_Section - BOARD ROOM EXPANSION
	Sheets
	A836.4 - Unnamed



	Pages from 210322 USD - Board Room Studies
	Boardroom


	13 Certificate of Merit 2020-Board Information Item May 2021_Final
	14 COVID-19 Update
	15 Bd Ck Reg Rpt04302021



